
BOARD MEMBER SECTOR EXPIRE 10-Jan 14-Feb 18-Apr 30-May 11-Jul 8-Aug 19-Sep 8-Nov

Hon. Roy Blair public (3) 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 3

Hon. Steve Floyd public (2) 2 2 2 2 2 2 0 2

Hon. Leslie Mackie public (3) 3 3 3 3 0 0 3 0

Hon. Richard Cordes public (4) 4 0 0 4 4 4 4 0

Hon. David Dillard (Chair) public (3) 3 0 0 3 3 3 3 3

Jeffrey Lisson low-income (2) 12/31/2020 0 2 2 2 2 2 0

Becky Trojcak low-income (2) 12/31/2018 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 0

Bernadette Coffee low-income (2) 12/31/2018 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Maj. Tim Grider low-income (2) 12/31/2018 0 0 2 2 0

Stephanie Hamby low-income (2) 12/21/2018 2 0

Noemi Samaniego (Vice-Chair) low-income (4) 12/31/2018 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 0

Neta Wescott private (3) 12/31/2020 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3

Victor Belman private (3) 12/31/2018 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Connie Booth private (5) 12/31/2020 0 5 0 5 5 5 5 5

Donna Holden private (4) 12/31/2018 4 4 4 0 0 4 4 4

E.A. Wadworth private (4) 12/31/2020 4 4 0 0 0 4

volunteer hours 30 26 26 37 28 34 40 29







CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S MINUTES 

November 8, 2018 
 

Meeting was held in the Green Room 2nd floor, Cactus Hotel 
36 East Twohig, San Angelo, Tom Green County, Texas 
Present at meeting: 
Directors: 
Elected Officials: The Honorable Richard Cordes - Absent 
   The Honorable David Dillard CVCAA Chair 
   The Honorable Roy Blair  
   The Honorable Steve Floyd  
   The Honorable Leslie Mackie - Absent 
Private Sector: Victor Belman 
   Neta Wescott 
   Connie Booth  
   Donna Holden  
   Elizabeth Ann Wadsworth  
Low Income Sector: Jeff Lisson 
   Bernie Coffee CVCAA Secretary 
   Noemi Samaniego - CVCAA Vice-Chair - Absent 
   Stephanie Hamby - Absent 
   Becky Trojcak - Absent 
 
Staff: Executive Director, Mark Bethune    Chief Financial Officer, Lyla Blue 

Agenda 
 

1. The Honorable David Dillard called the meeting to order at 5:30pm. Quorum 
present. 
 

2. Consider minutes for prior meeting and take appropriate action. 
Motion made by Donna Holden to accept minutes from prior meeting.  
Second made by Victor Belman 
Motion passed 8-0 

 
Connie Booth and Bernie Coffee join meeting. 
 

3. Consider and take appropriate action on 2017 CVCCA Financial Audit. 
Discussion on length of time to use same auditors. No limit of years to use 
same auditing firm. Received audit report from Armstrong Backus & Co., LLP 



Motion made by Jeff Lisson to accept report. 
Second by The Honorable Roy Blair 
Motion passed 10-0 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on Financial Report. 

Motion made by Jeff Lisson to accept report. 
Second by Donna Holden 
Motion passed 10-0 
 

5. Consider and take appropriate action on Budget Amendment. Lyla Blue 
presented budget documents to Board.  
Motion made by Jeff Lisson to accept report. 
Second by Connie Booth 
Motion passed 10-0 
 

6. Consider and take appropriate action on CVCAA employee insurance 
policies. 
Motion made by The Honorable Steve Floyd to accept desired policy. 
Second by Connie Booth 
Motion passed 10-0 
 

7. Consider and take appropriate action on Personnel Policy. 
Motion made by Donna Holden to accept policy. 
Second by Bernie Coffee 
Motion passed 10-0 
 

8. Consider and take appropriate action on TDHCA monitoring report. Executive 
Director shared that CVCAA is considered one of the top agencies by 
TDHCA.  
Motion made to accept report by The Honorable Steve Floyd. 
Second by Jeff Lisson 
Motion passed 10-0 
 

9. Consider and take appropriate action on Union Home Foundation grant 
application. Executive Director has applied for fund ($10k) to supplement 
case management stabilization 
Motion made to accept application for funds by Jeff Lisson. 
Second by Connie Booth 
Motion passed 10-0 
 



 
10. Consider and take appropriate action on Executive Director’s report. 

Executive Director shared that next year mail applications will be available to 
entire service area, online will also be available. CVCAA awarded $71, 
718.23 grant from USDA for minor home repairs to bring units up to where 
they can be repaired and weatherized. More outreach to be done in 
McCulloch County. CVCAA was the first agency to submit and receive 100% 
approval on organizational standards. After the first of the year the Executive 
Director will be doing some client services. 
Motion made by The Honorable Steve Floyd to accept report. 
Second by The Honorable Roy Blair 
Motion passed 10-0 
 

11. Consider future agenda items – 
 
 
Set date for future meeting. 

12. Wednesday, December 12, 2018, Meeting Room 2nd floor Cactus Hotel @ 
5:30pm. 

13. There being no further business before the Board, The Honorable David 
Dillard adjourned the meeting at 6:16pm. 

 
 
 
Signed this ______day of __________________________, 2018. 
 
The Honorable David Dillard, Chair 
 
Bernadette Coffee, Secretary 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

 
Board of Directors 
Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
San Angelo, Texas 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of 
December 31, 2017 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Concho Valley Community Action Agency as of December 31, 2017, and 
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in the year ended December 31, 2017, the 
Agency adopted new accounting guidance relating to financial statement presentation for 
nonprofit organizations. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
September 25, 2018 on our consideration of Concho Valley Community Action Agency’s internal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Concho Valley Community 
Action Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  

 
   Armstrong, Backus & Co., L.L.P. 

September 25, 2018 
 
 
 



CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY

Statement of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2017

Current Assets:
Cash 116,017$     
Grants and Contracts Receivable 88,749         
Prepaid Expenses 2,500           

Total Current Assets 207,266$     

Investments 117,174$     

Fixed Assets: 
Autos, Equipment, and Improvements 116,496$     
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 116,496)(      

Total Fixed Assets -0-$             

Total Assets 324,440$     

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 13,755$       
Grant Advances 15,882
Accrued Expenses 54,178         

Total Current Liabilities 83,815$       

Net Assets:
Without Donor Restrictions 240,625$     
With Donor Restrictions -0-               

Total Net Assets 240,625$     

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 324,440$     

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Public Support, Revenues, and Reclassifications

Contributions 52,156$          -0-$                 52,156$          

Federal Grants 2,006,042       -0-                   2,006,042       

Private Grants 74,398            -0-                   74,398            

Interest Income 1,191              -0-                   1,191              

Miscellaneous Income 9,475              -0-                   9,475              

Net Assets Released from Restrictions -0-                   -0-                   -0-                   

Total Public Support, Revenues,

  and Reclassifications 2,143,262$      -0-$                 2,143,262$      

Expenses

Grant Programs:

Community Services 280,502$        -0-$                 280,502$        

Crisis Intervention 1,342,196       -0-                   1,342,196       

Energy Conservation 547,312          -0-                   547,312          

Total Grant Programs 2,170,010$      -0-$                 2,170,010$      

General Administration 18,387            -0-                   18,387            

Total Expenses 2,188,397$      -0-$                 2,188,397$      

Change in Net Assets 45,135)($          -0-$                 45,135)($          

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 285,760          -0-                   285,760          

Net Assets, End of Year 240,625$        -0-$                 240,625$        

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Total 
Community Crisis Energy Program Management Total 

Services Intervention Conservation Expenses and General Expenses

Advertising 1,856 $            1,001 $              15,480 $            18,337 $            -0-$                  18,337 $            
Audit Expense 4,063              4,638                3,551                12,252              -0-                    12,252              
Auto Expense 1,827              182                   1,774                3,783                -0-                    3,783                
Client Service 26,590            1,135,332         330,351            1,492,273         -0-                    1,492,273         
Contract Labor -0-                  -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    
Dues and Subscriptions 1,800              -0-                    49                     1,849                -0-                    1,849                
Equipment Rental 194                -0-                    -0-                    194                   -0-                    194                   
Facility Rental 7,706              14,125              11,623              33,454              -0-                    33,454              
Fringe Benefits 41,585            38,528              31,918              112,031            342                   112,373            
Insurance 6,051              4,246                9,126                19,423              -0-                    19,423              
Maintenance and Repairs 1,965              775                   530                   3,270                -0-                    3,270                
Miscellaneous 1,214              -0-                    -0-                    1,214                7,174                8,388                
Office Supplies and Postage 7,412              11,136              5,166                23,714              -0-                    23,714              
Program Supplies -0-                  668                   2,092                2,760                -0-                    2,760                
Retirement Administration 1,289              -0-                    -0-                    1,289                -0-                    1,289                
Salaries and Wages 144,694          128,227            117,936            390,857            10,871               401,728            
Telephone 1,348              1,852                1,804                5,004                -0-                    5,004                
Training 4,500              800                   15,161              20,461              -0-                    20,461              
Travel 26,408            686                   751                   27,845              -0-                    27,845              

Total Expenses 280,502$        1,342,196$       547,312$          2,170,010$       18,387$            2,188,397$       

Program Expenses

 The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Grants and Contracts 2,186,691$       
Cash Received from Contributions 52,156              
Cash Received from Interest and Other Income 10,666              
Cash Used for Operations 1,827,296)(         
Cash Used for Salaries and Benefits 389,575)(            

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 32,642$            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Invested in Certificates of Deposit 1,165)($              

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities 1,165)($              

Net Decrease in Cash 31,477$            

Balance, Beginning of the Year 84,540              

Balance, End of the Year 116,017$          

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET CASH
USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets 45,135)($            

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash Used
  by Operating Activities:
Change in Assets and Liabilities:

Increase in Receivables 100,026$          
Increase in Accounts Payable 41,916)(              
Decrease in Grant Advances 6,225                
Increase in Accrued Expenses 13,442              
     Total Adjustments 77,777$            

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 32,642$            

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 
 
 

9 
 

NOTE 1:  NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Organization – The Concho Valley Community Action Agency (the Agency) is a private, 
non-profit corporation which serves Tom Green and the surrounding counties. The 
Agency operates various programs which promote self-sufficiency and combat poverty 
whether material, cultural, or economic. The Agency operates the following programs: 

 
 Community Services 

 
Community services are provided through the following programs: 

 
Community Services Block Grant – Provides comprehensive assistance to the 
Agency which allows the Agency to aid low-income persons in transitioning out 
of poverty. 
 
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance – Offers free tax assistance to individuals and 
families with emphasis on ensuring clients receive their apportioned federal 
earned income tax credit. 
 
Case Management – Provides financial assistance to low-income persons to aid 
in transitioning out of poverty. 
 
Make a Difference – Provides grant opportunities to micro-businesses. 
 
Methodist Healthcare Ministries – Provides funds for community health needs 
assessments focused on health and behavioral health. 
 

Crisis Intervention 
 
Crisis intervention services are provided to clients facing critical problems requiring 
an emergency response. The following programs and services are available to 
clients: 
 

Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program – Assists low-income and elderly 
persons with payments for heating and cooling expenses. 

 
 Atmos Sharing the Warmth – Assists qualifying persons with the payment of 
 gas utility bills. 
 

TXU Energy Aid – Assists qualifying persons with the payment of electric utility 
bills. 
 
Neighbor to Neighbor – Assists qualifying persons with the payment of electric 
utility bills. 

 
Emergency Food and Shelter Program – Provides qualifying persons with rental 
assistance. 
 
Reliant Care – Assists qualifying persons with the payment of electric utility 
bills. 



CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 
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 Energy Conservation  
 

 Weatherization programs assist families in maintaining adequate housing 
 through retrofitting measures that will best conserve energy to benefit the 
 families. The following programs provide weatherization assistance to eligible 
 clients: 
 
  Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program Weatherization – Provides 

weatherization assistance to qualified families.  
 
  DOE Weatherization – Provides weatherization assistance to qualified families. 

 
   TACAA AEP Weatherization – Provides weatherization assistance to qualified 

  families.  
 
Basis of Accounting – The financial statements of the Agency have been prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting and accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, 
and other liabilities. 

 
Basis of Presentation – The Agency has adopted the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) Codification 958, Not-for-Profit Entities (formerly Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Foundations). 
FASB 958 requires the Agency to classify its net assets based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. These classifications of net assets are described 
as follows: 
 

Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets available for use in general operations and 
not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.  

 
With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed 
restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as 
those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. 
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where donor stipulates 
that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released 
when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the 
stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. 

 
Use of Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Revenue Recognition – The Agency’s revenues are recorded as without donor 
restrictions or with donor restrictions depending on the existence and/or nature of any 
donor restrictions. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents – For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash 
equivalents include cash in bank depository accounts. Cash held by the Agency in bank 
accounts may at times exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) 
coverage limit for interest-bearing and non-interest bearing accounts. Cash held by the 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 
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Agency in a Credit Union may at times exceed the National Credit Union Administration 
(NCUA) coverage for interest-bearing and non-interest bearing accounts. Management 
believes the Agency is not exposed to any significant credit risk related to cash. 
 

 Grant and Reimbursement Contracts – The funds due from various funding sources 
under grant and reimbursement contracts are recognized as revenue in the accounting 
period when the expenditures are incurred and the grant funds are earned. 

 
Inventory – Minor materials and supplies are charged to expense during the period of 
purchase. As a result, no inventory is recognized on the statement of financial position. 

 
Functional Expenses – The Agency allocates its expenses on a functional basis among 
its various programs. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program are 
allocated directly according to their natural expense classification. 

 
Property and equipment – Property and equipment are recorded at cost, if purchased, or 
at fair value at date of gift, if contributed. The Agency capitalizes property and 
equipment if it has a life of two years or more and an acquisition cost of $5,000 or 
more. Depreciation is being provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets, which ranges from 5-10 years. Total depreciation expense was $-0- 
for the year ended December 31, 2017. 
 
The equipment acquired is owned by the Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
while used in the program for which it was purchased or in other future authorized 
programs. The funding sources, however, have a reversionary interest in the equipment 
purchased with grant funds; therefore, its disposition, as well as the ownership of any 
sale proceeds therefrom, is subject to funding source regulations. 

 
NOTE 2:  CONCENTRATIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 

The Agency received 88% of its public support and revenue from the U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services, which distributes funds through the Texas Department of 
Housing and Community Affairs. The Agency would realize a severe negative impact if 
the level of this support and revenue is significantly reduced or discontinued. 

 
NOTE 3: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

 
Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other 
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the 
following: 

 
Cash $           116,017 
Certificates of Deposit 
Grants and Contract Receivable 

117,174 
88,749 

 $           321,940 
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NOTE 4:  GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE 
 

The accounts receivable balance for the grants, contracts, and reimbursements at 
December 31, 2017 consists of the following amounts: 
 
DOE Weatherization $              5,291 
Community Services Block Grant 24,670 
Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program  58,788 
     Total $            88,749 

 
NOTE 5:  NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
  

Net assets restricted in perpetuity consist of the book value of autos and equipment 
purchased through the DOE, CSBG, and CEAP Programs. Depreciation of these 
permanently restricted assets is recorded as an expense in net assets without donor 
restriction and as net assets restricted in perpetuity released from restriction. As of 
December 31, 2017 the autos and equipment purchased through the DOE, CSBG, and 
CEAP Programs are fully depreciated resulting in a book value of $-0-. 
 

NOTE 6: PENSION PLAN 
 

The Agency sponsors a defined contribution pension plan covering all of its employees. 
Contributions to the plan during 2017 totaled $18,942. These contributions are 
included under Fringe Benefits in the Statement of Functional Expenses. 

 
NOTE 7:  LEASE COMMITMENTS 
 
       The Agency has entered into various facility and equipment lease agreements for the 

administrative offices. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Agency made facility 
and equipment lease payments of $33,648, of which $33,454 was allocated to the 
facility lease. The lease commitments are subject to change each year based on the 
lease agreement.  

 
 Effective August 1, 2017, the Agency has entered into a new lease agreement to lease its 

office space under an operating agreement set to expire June 30, 2019. The future 
minimum lease payments related to this lease are as follows: 

 
2018 
2019 

$     36,000 
       18,000 

Total $     54,000 
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 NOTE 8: FIXED ASSETS 
 
 The following is a summary of fixed assets, accumulated depreciation, and current 

depreciation: 
  

Beginning 
Balance 

 
 

Additions 

 
 

Disposals 

 
Ending 
Balance 

Autos $         60,604 $               -0- $             -0-  $     60,604 
Software 44,495 -0- -0- 44,495 
Equipment 11,397 -0- -0- 11,397 
   Total $       116,496 $               -0- $             -0- $   116,496 
Less: Accumulated 
Depreciation 

 
(        116,496) 

 
 -0- 

 
-0- 

 
(    116,496) 

   Net Fixed Assets      $               -0- $               -0- $             -0- $            -0- 

 
NOTE 9: POOLED CHECKING 
 

 The Agency maintains a pooled checking account from which all programs operate. 
Programs, whose share of the account is less than zero, have effectively borrowed from 
programs with a positive balance. Due to/from accounts have not been recorded but are 
reported as cash and bank overdrafts in the accompanying statements. The following is 
a summary of each program’s share of the pooled account: 

 
Administrative $            109,369 
Atmos – Sharing the Warmth 5,398 
Case Management 13,261 
CEAP Energy Assistance Program (             59,919) 
Community Services Block Grant (             20,321) 
DOE Weatherization Assistance Program   (             11,541) 
Emergency Food and Shelter Program (                  109) 
LIHEAP Weatherization Assistance Program 6,517 
Make a Difference 2,250 
Methodist Heathcare Ministries (               1,852) 
TACAA Weatherization Assistance Program (               7,955) 
TXU Energy Assistance 3,037 
Neighbor to Neighbor 10,558 
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance 
Reliant Care 

(                  309) 
17,549 

     Total $              65,933 

                 
 This amount is included in the cash balance as reflected in the statement of net assets. 

Bank overdrafts on certain programs occur because these programs receive funds 
under an expense reimbursement arrangement. A deficit cash balance will occur until 
funds are reimbursed from the appropriate agency. 
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NOTE 10: INCOME TAX STATUS 
 

The Agency is exempt from the federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the Agency qualifies for the charitable contribution 
deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an Agency that is not a 
private foundation under Section 509(a)(2). 
 
The Agency recognizes the financial statement effects from a tax position only if it is 
more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing 
authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. Examples of tax positions 
include the tax-exempt status of the Agency and various positions related to the 
potential sources of unrelated business taxable income (UBTI). The assessment of the 
technical merits of a tax position is a matter of judgment. The Agency believes that all 
its tax positions are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination. 

 
The Agency files Form 990 in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The Agency is generally no 
longer subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service for years before 2014. 

 
NOTE 11: RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
(Topic 606)” to provide accounting guidance related to revenue from contracts with 
customers. The guidance applies to all entities and to all contracts with customers, 
except for the following transactions: leases, insurance contracts, certain financial 
instruments, guarantees and nonmonetary exchanges between entities in the same line 
of business. The core principle of ASU 2014-09 provides for an entity to recognize 
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services. Subsequently issued ASU’s have deferred the effective date for 
application of this ASU to all entities, other than public business entities, certain not-
for-profit entities, and certain employee benefit plans, to annual reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2018. Management is currently assessing the impact the 
adoption of ASU 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements. 
 
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 “Leases (Topic 842)” (“ASU 2016-02”). 
The FASB issued ASU 2016-02 to increase transparency and comparability among 
organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and 
disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. Under ASU 2016-02, a lessee 
will recognize in the statement of financial position a liability to make lease payments 
(the lease liability) and a right-to-use asset representing its right to use the underlying 
asset for the lease term. The recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses 
and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee have not significantly changed from 
current GAAP. ASU 2016-02 retains a distinction between finance leases (i.e. capital 
leases under current GAAP) and operating leases. The classification criteria for 
distinguishing between finance leases and operating leases will be substantially similar 
to the classification criteria for distinguishing between capital leases and operating 
leases under current GAAP. The amendments of this ASU are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. An entity 
will be required to recognize and measure leases at the beginning of the earliest period 
presented using a modified retrospective approach. Management is currently assessing 
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the impact the adoption of ASU 2016-02 will have on its consolidated financial 
statements. 

 
NOTE 12: DATE OF MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW 
 

The Agency has evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition and/or 
disclosure through September 25, 2018, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Board of Directors 
Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
San Angelo, Texas 

 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Concho Valley Community Action Agency (a nonprofit organization) which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2017, and the related 
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 
25, 2018.  

 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to 
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Concho Valley Community Action Agency’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. 
  
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 

   Armstrong, Backus & Co., L.L.P. 
 

September 25, 2018 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control 
Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
Board of Directors 
Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
San Angelo, TX 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Program 
 
We have audited Concho Valley Community Action Agency’s compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of Concho Valley Community Action Agency’s major federal 
programs for the year ended December 31, 2017. Concho Valley Community Action Agency’s 
major federal programs are identified in the Summary of Auditors’ Results section of the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the 
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Concho Valley Community Action Agency’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Concho 
Valley Community Action Agency’s compliance. 
 
 
 



   

 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Concho Valley Community Action Agency complied, in all material respects, 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2017. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Concho Valley Community Action Agency is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we 
considered Concho Valley Community Action Agency’s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency’s internal control over compliance.  
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is more than a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
  
    Armstrong, Backus & Co., L.L.P. 
 
September 25, 2018     
 



CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Federal Pass-Through

CFDA Entity Identifying Total Federal

Number Number Expenditures

U.S Department of Health and Human Services Programs

Passed through Texas Dept. of Housing and Community Affairs

Community Services Block Grant 93.569 078547106 258,215 $               

LIHEAP Weatherization/ Enhanced Weatherization Assistance Program 93.568 078547106 325,698                 

Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program 93.568 078547106 1,301,596              

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Programs 1,885,509 $            

U.S. Department of Energy Programs

Passed through Texas Dept. of Housing and Community Affairs

DOE Weatherization 81.042 078547106 111,837 $               

Total U.S Department of Energy Programs 111,837 $               

U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Passed through United Way

Emergency Food and Shelter Program 97.024 4,500 $                   

Total U.S Department of Energy Programs 4,500 $                   

U.S. Department of the Treasury

Passed through Central Texas Opportunities

Volunteer Income Tax Assistance 21.009 4,196 $                   

Total U.S Department of Energy Programs 4,196 $                   

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 2,006,042 $            

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

See Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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NOTE 1:  BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) 
includes the federal award activity of Concho Valley Community Action Agency under 
programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2017. The 
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the 
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency, it is not intended to and does not present the financial 
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency. 

 
NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement.  
 

NOTE 3: INDIRECT COSTS 
 

The Agency does not recover indirect costs unless expressly allowed by each award. 
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I. Summary of Auditors’ Results 
 
    Financial Statements 
 
    Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the financial  
 statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP Unmodified opinion 
 
    Internal control over financial reporting: 
    Material weakness identified?   No 
    Significant deficiencies identified?   No 
    Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  No 
 
    Federal Awards 
 
    Internal control over major federal programs: 
    Material weakness identified?   No 
    Significant deficiencies identified?   No 
    Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major 
 federal programs:    Unmodified opinion 
    Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
 reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?  No 
 
    Identification of major programs: 

93.568  Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 
93.568  Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program 

 
    Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
 Type B programs:    $750,000 
 
    Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?   Yes 
 
II. Financial Statement Findings 
 
    There were no findings noted. 
 
III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
    There were no findings noted. 
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There were no prior year audit findings noted. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

Board of Directors 
Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
San Angelo, Texas 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as 
a whole. The supplementary information on pages 27 through 30 is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to 
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a 
whole. 
 
    Armstrong, Backus & Co. L.L.P. 
 
September 25, 2018 



CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY

Combining Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Community Service

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Community Volunteer Methodist Total
Services Income Tax Case Make a Healthcare Community

Block Grant Assistance Management Difference Ministries Service
Revenues

Contributions -0-$                   5,000 $              -0-$                   600 $                 -0-$                   5,600 $              
Federal Grants 258,215             4,196                 -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     262,411             

Total Revenues 258,215 $          9,196 $              -0-$                   600 $                 -0-$                   268,011 $          

Expenses
Advertising 1,856 $              -0-$                   -0-$                   -0-$                   -0-$                   1,856 $              
Audit Expense 4,063                 -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     4,063                 
Auto Expense 1,827                 -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     1,827                 
Client Service 23,080               -0-                     2,510                 1,000                 -0-                     26,590               
Dues and Subscriptions 1,800                 -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     1,800                 
Equipment Rental 194                    -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     194                    
Facility Rental 5,706                 2,000                 -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     7,706                 
Fringe Benefits 39,385               2,200                 -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     41,585               
Insurance 6,051                 -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     6,051                 
Maintenance and Repairs 1,535                 430                    -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     1,965                 
Miscellaneous 758                    456                    -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     1,214                 
Office Supplies and Postage 6,444                 968                    -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     7,412                 
Retirement Administration 1,289                 -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     1,289                 
Salaries and Wages 136,400             8,294                 -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     144,694             
Telephone 1,326                 22                      -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     1,348                 
Training 4,500                 -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     -0-                     4,500                 
Travel 26,077               376                    -0-                     -0-                     (45)                     26,408               

Total Expenses 262,291 $          14,746 $            2,510 $              1,000 $              45)($                    280,502 $          

Excess Revenues (Expenses) 4,076)($               5,550)($               2,510)($               400)($                  45 $                   12,491)($             

See Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary Information. 
27



CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY

Combining Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Crisis Intervention

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Comprehensive Emergency Food Other Total

Energy Sharing TXU Neighbor to and Shelter Reliant Crisis Crisis

Assistance the Warmth Energy Aid Neighbor Program Care Intervention Intervention

Revenues

Contributions -0-$                  1,622 $             6,000 $             19,000 $           -0-$                  18,480 $           18,480 $           45,102 $           

Federal Grants 1,301,596         -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    4,500               -0-                    -0-                    1,306,096         

Total Revenues 1,301,596 $       1,622 $             6,000 $             19,000 $           4,500 $             18,480 $           18,480 $           1,351,198 $       

Expenses

Advertising 1,001 $             -0-$                  -0-$                  -0-$                  -0-$                  -0-$                  -0-$                  1,001 $             

Audit Expense 4,638               -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    4,638               

Auto Expense 182                  -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    182                  

Client Service 1,093,750         -0-                    13,532             21,627             4,500               931                  992                  1,135,332         

Facility Rental 14,125 -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    14,125             

Fringe Benefits 38,528 -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    38,528             

Insurance 4,246 -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    4,246               

Maintenance and Repair 775 -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    775                  

Office Supplies and Postage 11,136             -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    11,136             

Program Supplies 668                  -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    668                  

Salaries and Wages 128,227 -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    128,227            

Telephone 1,852               -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    1,852               

Training 800                  -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    800                  

Travel 686                  -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    -0-                    686                  

Total Expenses 1,300,614 $       -0-$                  13,532 $           21,627 $           4,500 $             931 $                992 $                1,342,196 $       

Excess Revenues (Expenses) 982 $                1,622 $             7,532)($             2,627)($             -0-$                  17,549 $           17,488 $           9,002 $             

 See Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary Information.
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CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY

Combining Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Energy Conservation

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

DOE LIHEAP TACAA Other Energy 
Weatherization Weatherization Weatherization Weatherization Conservation

Revenues
Federal Grants 111,837 $             325,698 $             -0-$                     -0-$                     437,535 $             
Private Grants -0-                       -0-                       74,398                 -0-                       74,398                 

Total Revenues 111,837 $             325,698 $             74,398 $               -0-$                     511,933 $             

Expenses
Advertising 5,451 $                 10,029 $               -0-$                     -0-$                     15,480 $               
Audit Expense 1,088                   2,463                  -0-                       -0-                       3,551                  
Auto Expense 423                      1,351                  -0-                       -0-                       1,774                  
Client Service 41,773                 225,676               60,462                 2,440                  330,351               
Dues and Subscriptions 49                       -0-                       -0-                       -0-                       49                       
Facility Rental 3,916                   6,148                  1,559                  -0-                       11,623                 
Fringe Benefits 11,067                 17,195                 3,656                  -0-                       31,918                 
Insurance 4,467                   3,625                  1,034                  -0-                       9,126                  
Maintenance and Repair 30                       500                     -0-                       -0-                       530                     
Office Supplies and Postage 1,893                   3,273                  -0-                       -0-                       5,166                  
Program Supplies 846                      1,246                  -0-                       -0-                       2,092                  
Salaries and Wages 35,108                 67,142                 15,686                 -0-                       117,936               
Telephone 476                      1,074                  254                     -0-                       1,804                  
Training 14,811                 350                     -0-                       -0-                       15,161                 
Travel 146                      605                     -0-                       -0-                       751                     

Total Expenses 121,544 $             340,677 $             82,651 $               2,440 $                547,312 $             

Excess Revenues (Expenses) 9,707)($                 14,979)($               8,253)($                 2,440)($                 35,379)($               

    See Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary Information.
29



CONCHO VALLEY COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY

Individual Statement of Revenues and Expenses - General Administration

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Revenues
Contributions 1,454$           
Interest Income 1,191
Miscellaneous Income 9,475

Total Revenues 12,120$         

Expenses
Fringe Benefits 342$              
Miscellaneous 7,174
Salaries and Wages 10,871

Total Expenses 18,387$         

Excess Revenues 6,267)($           

  See Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary Information.
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September 25, 2018 
 
Board of Directors 
Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
San Angelo, TX 

 
We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the financial statements of Concho 
Valley Community Action Agency (the Agency) for the year ended December 31, 2017. This report 
summarizes certain matters required by professional standards to be communicated to you in 
your oversight responsibility for Concho Valley Community Action Agency’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and 
management and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. It will be our pleasure to respond to any questions you have about this report. 
We appreciate the opportunity to continue to be of service to Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency. 
 

Armstrong, Backus & Co., L.L.P. 
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Required Communications 

Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditor’s Communication With Those 
Charged With Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication 
between the auditor and those charged with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the 
following summarizes our responsibilities regarding the financial statement audit as well as 
observations arising from our audit that are significant and relevant to your responsibility to 
oversee the financial reporting process. 
 

Area  Comments 
   

Our Responsibilities With 
Regard to the Financial 
Statement Audit 

 Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America have been described to 
you in our arrangement letter dated August 7, 2018. 

Overview of the Planned 
Scope and Timing of the 
Financial Statement 
Audit 

 We have issued a separate arrangement letter regarding the 
planned scope and timing of our audit and have discussed with 
you our identification of and planned audit response to 
significant risks of material misstatement. 

Accounting Policies and 
Practices 

 Preferability of Accounting Policies and Practices 
Under generally accepted accounting principles, in certain 
circumstances, management may select among alternative 
accounting practices. In our view, in such circumstances, 
management has selected the preferable accounting practice. 

  Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies 
Management has the ultimate responsibility for the 
appropriateness of the accounting policies used by the Agency. 
The Agency did not adopt any significant new accounting 
policies, nor have there been any changes in existing significant 
accounting policies during the current period. 

  Significant or Unusual Transactions 
We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions or 
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging 
areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. 

  Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates  
Summary information about the process used by management 
in formulating particularly sensitive accounting estimates and 
about our conclusions regarding the reasonableness of those 
estimates is in the attached Summary of Significant Accounting 
Estimates.  

Audit Adjustments  Audit adjustments proposed by us and recorded by Concho 
Valley Community Action Agency are shown on the attached 
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments. 

Uncorrected 
Misstatements 

 Uncorrected misstatements are summarized in the attached 
Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements. 
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Other Information in 
Documents Containing 
Audited Financial 
Statements 

 The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, 
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 

Disagreements With 
Management 

 We encountered no disagreements with management over the 
application of significant accounting principles, the basis for 
management’s judgments on any significant matters, the scope 
of the audit, or significant disclosures to be included in the 
financial statements. 

Consultations With Other 
Accountants 

 We are not aware of any consultations management had with 
other accountants about accounting or auditing matters. 

Significant Issues 
Discussed With 
Management 

 No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed with 
or were the subject of correspondence with management. 

Significant Difficulties 
Encountered in 
Performing the Audit 

 We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with 
management during the audit. 

Material Written 
Communications 
Between Management 
and Our Firm 

 Copies of material written communications between our firm 
and the management of the Agency, including the 
representation letter provided to us by management are 
attached. 
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Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates 
Year Ended December 31, 2017 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are 
based upon management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses 
their knowledge and experience about past and current events and certain assumptions about 
future events. You may wish to monitor throughout the year the process used to determine and 
record these accounting estimates. The following describes the significant accounting estimates 
reflected in the Agency’s December 31, 2017 financial statements. 
 
 

Estimate Accounting Policy 
Management’s 

Estimation Process 

Basis for Our 
Conclusions on 

Reasonableness of 
Estimate 

Depreciation Straight-Line Method Straight-line depreciation Reviewed useful 
  over expected life. lives and recalculated 
   depreciation for a 
   sampled selection 
   of assets. 
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Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
Summary of Recorded Audit Adjustments 
Year Ended December 31, 2017 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate 
level of management.  Management has corrected all such misstatements. We have attached a 
copy of all adjustments proposed by us and approved by management. 



MP NFP Template v5.0 - 4/2012 IV-8
Year End: December 31, 2017 Prepared by 1 Prepared by 2 Prepared by 3 Reviewed by 1
Trial balance GCT 9/26/2018
Date:  1/1/2017  To  12/31/2017 Reviewed by 2 Reviewed by 3 Reviewed by 4 Reviewed by 5

Number    Date    Name    Account No    Reference Debit Credit

PBCAJE1 12/31/2017 Grants Receivable 10-1210 IV-11 11,500.00
PBCAJE1 12/31/2017 Grant Revenue 10-4110 IV-11 11,500.00
PBCAJE1 12/31/2017 Grants Receivable 20-1210 IV-11 50,000.00

PBCAJE1 12/31/2017 Grant Revenue 20-4110 IV-11 50,000.00
PBCAJE1 12/31/2017 Grants Receivable 30-1210 IV-11 20,000.00
PBCAJE1 12/31/2017 Grant Revenue 30-4110 IV-11 20,000.00

PBCAJE1 12/31/2017 Grants Receivable 40-1210 IV-11 19,118.24
PBCAJE1 12/31/2017 Grant Revenue 40-4110 IV-11 19,118.24

PBC - To correct grants receivable
and income

PBCAJE2 12/31/2017 First Financial Checking 10-1105 30-1 3,554.67
PBCAJE2 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages 10-6111 30-1 3,554.67
PBCAJE2 12/31/2017 First Financial Checking 20-1105 30-1 3,554.66

PBCAJE2 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages 20-6111 30-1 3,554.66
PBCAJE2 12/31/2017 First Financial Checking 99-1105 30-1 7,109.33
PBCAJE2 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages 99-6111 30-1 7,109.33

PBC - To reclass paid vacation to
grant

expense.

PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages Payable 10-2150 AA-1 4,800.65

PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages 10-6111 AA-1 2,358.32
PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages - Officers 10-6113 AA-1 2,442.33
PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages Payable 20-2150 AA-1 10,059.50

PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages Payable 20-2150 AA-1 569.52
PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages 20-6111 AA-1 6,419.68

PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages 20-6111 AA-1 1,041.49
PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages - Officers 20-6113 AA-1 2,598.33
PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages 30-6111 AA-1 460.11

PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages - Officers 30-6113 AA-1 109.41
PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages Payable 40-2150 AA-1 3,650.81
PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages 40-6111 AA-1 460.11

PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages 40-6111 AA-1 3,083.02
PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages - Officers 40-6113 AA-1 107.68
PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages Payable 99-2150 AA-1 9,884.00

PBCAJE3 12/31/2017 Salaries and Wages 99-6111 AA-1 9,884.00

PBC - To accrue payroll for

December
31, 2017 paid in January 2018.

143,801.38 143,801.38

Net Income (Loss) (45,135.41)

9/28/2018
8:04 AM Page 1
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Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
Summary of Uncorrected Misstatements 
Year Ended December 31, 2017 
 
During the course of our audit, we accumulated uncorrected misstatements that were 
determined by management to be immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the 
financial position, results of operations, cash flows and related financial statement disclosures. 
Attached is a summary of those differences. 



MP NFP Template v5.0 - 4/2012 IV-10
Year End: December 31, 2017 Prepared by 1 Prepared by 2 Prepared by 3 Reviewed by 1
Adjusting journal entries GCT 9/26/2018

Date:  1/1/2017  To  12/31/2017 Reviewed by 2 Reviewed by 3 Reviewed by 4 Reviewed by 5

Number    Date    Name    Account No    Reference Annotation Debit Credit Recurrence Misstatement

PAJE1 12/31/2017 First Financial Checking 20-1105 A-10 9,563.35

PAJE1 12/31/2017 Net Assets 20-3100 A-10 9,563.35

To void a check that has not

cleared the bank in over 6 months.

9,563.35 9,563.35

Net Income (Loss) (45,135.41 )

9/28/2018

8:03 AM Page 1













Programs Unrestricted Total
Assets

Current Assets
First Financial Checking (3,868.09)        106,145.99      102,277.90      
1st Community FCU Savings -                  30.77               30.77               
First Financial MMA -                  50,071.28        50,071.28        
1st Community FCU CD #20 -                  118,053.76      118,053.76      
Grants Receivable 243,080.10      -                  243,080.10      
Security Deposit -                  2,500.00          2,500.00          
Total Current Assets 239,212.01      276,801.80      516,013.81      

Long-term Assets
Vehicles 83,684.88        -                  83,684.88        
Acc Dep - Vehicles (60,604.00)      -                  (60,604.00)      
Software 44,495.00        -                  44,495.00        
Acc Dep - Software (44,495.00)      -                  (44,495.00)      
Equipment 11,397.00        -                  11,397.00        
Acc Dep - Equipment (11,397.00)      -                  (11,397.00)      
Total Long-term Assets 23,080.88        -                  23,080.88        

Total Assets 262,292.89      276,801.80      539,094.69      

Liabilities
Short-term Liabilities

Accounts Payable 30,981.05        -                  30,981.05        
Payroll Liabilities Payable (1,404.92)        -                  (1,404.92)        
Accrued Vacation -                  17,474.55        17,474.55        
Total Short-term Liabilities 29,576.13        17,474.55        47,050.68        

Net Assets
Unrestricted -                  259,327.25      259,327.25      
Temporarily Restricted 209,635.88      -                  209,635.88      
Permanently Restricted 23,080.88        -                  23,080.88        
Total Net Assets 232,716.76      259,327.25      492,044.01      

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 262,292.89      276,801.80      539,094.69      

Concho Valley Community Action Agency
Statement of Financial Position

September 30, 2018



CSBG September YTD Budget Over/(Under) % of Budget

Income 16,926.25            195,173.42      280,897.78              (85,724.36)      69.48%

Personnel 10,168.48            101,010.06      159,186.31              (58,176.25)      63.45%
Fringe Benefits 2,946.50              30,168.76        49,156.20                (18,987.44)      61.37%
Travel (182.08)                17,666.56        25,750.00                (8,083.44)        68.61%
Equipment -                       65.28               65.28                       -                  100.00%
Supplies 218.63                 3,107.49          3,600.00                  (492.51)           86.32%
Contractual 1,125.00              3,561.25          3,500.00                  61.25               101.75%
Other 3,785.56              32,729.86        39,639.99                (6,910.13)        82.57%
Total Expenses 18,062.09            188,309.26      280,897.78              (92,588.52)      67.04%

CEAP September YTD Budget Over/(Under) % of Budget

Income 158,418.87          1,099,918.21   1,236,727.64           (136,809.43)    88.94%

Administration 14,833.28            92,910.40        84,156.00                8,754.40          110.40%
Direct Services 159,717.90          785,163.72      938,275.27              (153,111.55)    83.68%
Program Support 12,867.69            100,771.15      213,096.37              (112,325.22)    47.29%
Training -                       1,200.00          1,200.00                  -                  100.00%
Total Expenses 187,418.87          980,045.27      1,236,727.64           (256,682.37)    79.25%

DOE September YTD Budget Over/(Under) % of Budget

Income 6,335.10              63,697.72        57,795.00                5,902.72          110.21%

Administration 563.00                 1,550.01          -                           1,550.01          #DIV/0!
Insurance -                       2,273.28          2,273.28                  -                  100.00%
Fiscal Audit -                       800.00             -                           800.00             #DIV/0!
Materials/Labor -                       16,980.81        16,980.81                -                  100.00%
Program Support 1,860.32              14,111.30        10,936.27                3,175.03          129.03%
Health & Safety -                       4,715.00          10,011.00                (5,296.00)        47.10%
Training -                       18,717.64        17,593.64                1,124.00          106.39%
Total Expenses 2,423.32              59,148.04        57,795.00                1,353.04          102.34%

Concho Valley Community Action Agency
Income/Expenses

As of September 30, 2018

Grants (75% of 12 Month Period)



LIHEAP September YTD Budget Over/(Under) % of Budget

Income 60,811.66            323,490.07      362,644.53              (39,154.46)      89.20%

Administration 1,312.98              13,814.79        21,284.00                (7,469.21)        64.91%
Materials/Labor 33,986.55            157,293.72      177,716.17              (20,422.45)      88.51%
Program Suppport 5,457.13              67,883.64        84,838.34                (16,954.70)      80.02%
Health & Safety 10,555.00            57,610.00        75,156.00                (17,546.00)      76.65%
Training -                       954.21             3,650.02                  (2,695.81)        26.14%
Total Expenses 51,311.66            297,556.36      362,644.53              (65,088.17)      82.05%

TACAA September YTD Budget Over/(Under) % of Budget

Income 25,060.81            61,917.76        87,375.00                (25,457.24)      70.86%

Administration 1,687.86              4,172.42          5,716.12                  (1,543.70)        72.99%
Materials/Labor 11,100.35            61,418.74        71,007.72                (9,588.98)        86.50%
Program Suppport 2,903.33              18,624.87        10,651.16                7,973.71          174.86%
Total Expenses 15,691.54            84,216.03        87,375.00                (3,158.97)        96.38%

Monthly Income Income YTD Monthly Expenses Expenses YTD

CSBG Discretionary -                       12,403.00        -                           12,403.00        

VITA 4,071.00              6,622.00          -                           15,116.18        

Neighbor to Neighbor -                       16,000.00        1,755.51                  11,551.93        

TXU Energy Aid -                       11,250.00        1,064.89                  10,522.71        

Sharing the Warmth -                       721.04             -                           -                  

Reliant CARE -                       -                  -                           1,494.03          

Case Management -                       2,500.00          -                           821.70             

Make a Difference -                       -                  1,000.00                  1,000.00          

Interest 101.14                 898.06             -                           -                  

Unrestricted 60.22                   5,616.88          17.21                       16,187.46        

Other

Concho Valley Community Action Agency
Income/Expenses

As of September 30, 2018

Grants (75% of 12 Month Period)



CSBG CEAP DOE LIHEAP TACAA - AEP Total

4110 Grant Revenue (4,908.00) 599,759.00 109,476.00 126,836.00 7,485.00 838,648.00

Total Income (4,908.00) 599,759.00 109,476.00 126,836.00 7,485.00 838,648.00

6111 Salaries and Wages (5,138.60) 30,000.00 9,681.85 16,841.73 (8,812.37) 42,572.61
6113 Salaries and Wages - Officers 0.00 14,262.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,262.00
6121 Payroll Taxes 0.00 1,691.62 0.00 0.00 83.68 1,775.30
6124 SUTA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6125 Health Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 183.09 183.09
6126 Dental Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 21.67 21.67
6127 Life Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.97 3.97
6128 Retirement Contribution 0.00 1,108.90 0.00 0.00 56.00 1,164.90
6129 Workers Compensation 0.00 0.00 158.20 117.92 (91.12) 185.00
6133 Vision Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.21 4.21
6212 Audit 0.00 0.00 0.00 (287.50) 200.00 (87.50)
6213 Accounting 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6216 Contract Labor 0.00 520.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 520.00
6217 Retirement Administration Fee 650.00 100.00 0.00 178.46 0.00 928.46
6231 Insurance 0.00 0.00 1,879.85 0.00 0.00 1,879.85
6251 Rent 752.50 0.00 1,938.84 804.17 0.00 3,495.51
6266 Communications 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6267 Utilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6311 Office Supplies 500.00 0.00 200.00 0.00 40.00 740.00
6312 Postage 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
6314 Program Supplies 0.00 35,000.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 35,500.00
6322 Postage Meter Rental 19.72 19.72 0.00 12.36 0.00 51.80
6323 Furniture and Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6326 Software 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6411 Travel 0.00 0.00 6,500.00 0.00 0.00 6,500.00
6413 Travel - Board (1,750.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,750.00)
6415 Travel - Meals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6521 Gas 0.00 25.00 0.00 150.56 0.00 175.56
6523 Repairs and Maint - Vehicles 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6531 Repairs and Maint - Equipment 550.00 100.00 0.00 504.27 40.00 1,194.27
6539 Janitorial 2,008.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,008.38
6611 Advertising 0.00 0.00 (2,340.81) 0.00 400.00 (1,940.81)
6621 Dues and Subscriptions 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00
6631 Training 2,500.00 0.00 16,525.00 0.00 0.00 19,025.00
6700 Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6820 Direct Services - Utilities 0.00 516,831.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 516,831.76
6830 Direct Services - Repairs 0.00 0.00 74,433.07 108,514.03 15,355.87 198,302.97
6800 Direct Services - Case Management (6,000.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (6,000.00)

Total Expenses (4,908.00) 599,759.00 109,476.00 126,836.00 7,485.00 838,648.00

Difference (0.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Concho Valley Community Action Agency
Budget Amendment

11/8/18

Account



CSBG CEAP DOE LIHEAP TACAA - AEP Total

4110 Grant Revenue 275,989.78 1,836,486.64 167,271.00 489,480.53 94,860.00 2,864,087.95

Total Income 275,989.78 1,836,486.64 167,271.00 489,480.53 94,860.00 2,864,087.95

6111 Salaries and Wages 70,249.71 201,473.36 15,659.85 60,366.74 7,946.63 355,696.29
6113 Salaries and Wages - Officers 83,798.00 42,500.00 6,123.00 8,296.00 121.00 140,838.00
6121 Payroll Taxes 12,791.26 13,000.00 2,455.73 4,699.78 1,375.00 34,321.77
6124 SUTA 541.25 1,082.50 100.90 342.59 97.76 2,165.00
6125 Health Insurance 24,020.15 21,235.52 4,611.50 8,825.51 2,608.00 61,300.68
6126 Dental Insurance 2,370.61 2,095.78 455.11 871.01 261.00 6,053.51
6127 Life Insurance 406.49 359.37 78.04 149.35 45.00 1,038.25
6128 Retirement Contribution 8,360.30 8,500.00 1,605.05 3,071.75 900.00 22,437.10
6129 Workers Compensation 252.25 252.25 252.25 437.25 1,194.00
6133 Vision Insurance 413.89 365.91 79.46 152.07 46.00 1,057.33
6212 Audit 2,837.50 5,675.00 800.00 1,750.00 200.00 11,262.50
6213 Accounting 312.50 625.00 114.70 197.80 1,250.00
6216 Contract Labor 520.00 520.00
6217 Retirement Administration Fee 1,000.00 800.00 65.25 400.00 63.22 2,328.47
6231 Insurance 4,130.75 8,261.50 5,669.28 2,941.32 21,002.85
6251 Rent 6,500.00 16,696.13 4,500.00 9,500.00 2,481.38 39,677.51
6266 Communications 1,388.57 2,082.86 325.98 1,106.77 315.82 5,220.00
6267 Utilities 556.55 1,669.61 256.12 869.58 248.14 3,600.00
6311 Office Supplies 3,500.00 6,000.00 200.00 1,000.00 40.00 10,740.00
6312 Postage 600.00 700.00 300.00 1,600.00
6314 Program Supplies 35,000.00 500.00 1,000.00 36,500.00
6322 Postage Meter Rental 85.00 85.00 45.00 215.00
6323 Furniture and Equipment 0.00 0.00
6326 Software 3,125.00 6,250.00 1,147.00 1,978.00 12,500.00
6411 Travel 20,000.00 6,500.00 26,500.00
6413 Travel - Board 3,500.00 3,500.00
6415 Travel - Meals 500.00 300.00 750.00 1,550.00
6521 Gas 250.00 125.00 279.64 1,100.00 270.93 2,025.57
6523 Repairs and Maint - Vehicles 500.00 500.00 93.21 316.48 90.31 1,500.00
6531 Repairs and Maint - Equipment 1,000.00 550.00 264.27 550.00 40.00 2,404.27
6539 Janitorial 2,500.00 1,474.82 226.24 768.13 219.19 5,188.38
6611 Advertising 3,000.00 2,000.00 5,000.00 12,659.18 400.00 23,059.18
6621 Dues and Subscriptions 3,000.00 3,000.00
6631 Training 7,500.00 1,200.00 22,255.06 3,650.02 34,605.08
6700 Miscellaneous 1,000.00 1,000.00
6820 Direct Services - Utilities 1,455,107.03 1,455,107.03
6830 Direct Services - Repairs 87,653.36 361,386.20 77,090.62 526,130.18
6800 Direct Services - Case Management 6,000.00 6,000.00

Total Expenses 275,989.78 1,836,486.64 167,271.00 489,480.53 94,860.00 2,864,087.95

Difference 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Concho Valley Community Action Agency
Revised Budget 11/8/18

2018

Account



CSBG CEAP DOE LIHEAP TACAA - AEP Total

4110 Grant Revenue 280,897.78 1,236,727.64 57,795.00 362,644.53 87,375.00 2,025,439.95

Total Income 280,897.78 1,236,727.64 57,795.00 362,644.53 87,375.00 2,025,439.95

6111 Salaries and Wages 75,388.31 171,473.36 5,978.00 43,525.01 16,759.00 313,123.68
6113 Salaries and Wages - Officers 83,798.00 28,238.00 6,123.00 8,296.00 121.00 126,576.00
6121 Payroll Taxes 12,791.26 11,308.38 2,455.73 4,699.78 1,291.32 32,546.47
6124 SUTA 541.25 1,082.50 100.90 342.59 97.76 2,165.00
6125 Health Insurance 24,020.15 21,235.52 4,611.50 8,825.51 2,424.91 61,117.59
6126 Dental Insurance 2,370.61 2,095.78 455.11 871.01 239.33 6,031.84
6127 Life Insurance 406.49 359.37 78.04 149.35 41.03 1,034.28
6128 Retirement Contribution 8,360.30 7,391.10 1,605.05 3,071.75 844.00 21,272.20
6129 Workers Compensation 252.25 252.25 94.05 319.33 91.12 1,009.00
6133 Vision Insurance 413.89 365.91 79.46 152.07 41.79 1,053.12
6212 Audit 2,837.50 5,675.00 800.00 2,037.50 11,350.00
6213 Accounting 312.50 625.00 114.70 197.80 1,250.00
6216 Contract Labor 0.00
6217 Retirement Administration Fee 350.00 700.00 65.25 221.54 63.22 1,400.01
6231 Insurance 4,130.75 8,261.50 3,789.43 2,941.32 19,123.00
6251 Rent 5,747.50 16,696.13 2,561.16 8,695.83 2,481.38 36,182.00
6266 Communications 1,388.57 2,082.86 325.98 1,106.77 315.82 5,220.00
6267 Utilities 556.55 1,669.61 256.12 869.58 248.14 3,600.00
6311 Office Supplies 3,000.00 6,000.00 1,000.00 10,000.00
6312 Postage 600.00 600.00 300.00 1,500.00
6314 Program Supplies 1,000.00 1,000.00
6322 Postage Meter Rental 65.28 65.28 32.64 163.20
6323 Furniture and Equipment 0.00 0.00
6326 Software 3,125.00 6,250.00 1,147.00 1,978.00 12,500.00
6411 Travel 20,000.00 20,000.00
6413 Travel - Board 5,250.00 5,250.00
6415 Travel - Meals 500.00 300.00 750.00 1,550.00
6521 Gas 250.00 100.00 279.64 949.44 270.93 1,850.01
6523 Repairs and Maint - Vehicles 500.00 500.00 93.21 316.48 90.31 1,500.00
6531 Repairs and Maint - Equipment 450.00 450.00 264.27 45.73 1,210.00
6539 Janitorial 491.62 1,474.82 226.24 768.13 219.19 3,180.00
6611 Advertising 3,000.00 2,000.00 7,340.81 12,659.18 24,999.99
6621 Dues and Subscriptions 2,000.00 2,000.00
6631 Training 5,000.00 1,200.00 5,730.06 3,650.02 15,580.08
6700 Miscellaneous 1,000.00 1,000.00
6820 Direct Services - Utilities 938,275.27 938,275.27
6830 Direct Services - Repairs 13,220.29 252,872.17 61,734.75 327,827.21
6800 Direct Services - Case Management 12,000.00 12,000.00

Total Expenses 280,897.78 1,236,727.64 57,795.00 362,644.53 87,375.00 2,025,439.95

Difference 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Account

Concho Valley Community Action Agency
Revised Budget 4/18/18

2018



Medical Deductible
Office 

Copay
Coins

Out of 

Pocket
Pharmacy

Monthly 

Premium

* BCBS 6,000$        $20/$40 100% 6,000$        $0/$10/$50 5,086$        

SW 5,000$        $40/$60 100% 7,350$        $10/$60/50% 4,216$        

SW 3,750$        $30/$60 80% 7,350$        $20/$50/50% 4,268$        

SW 1,500$        $25/$50 80% 4,500$        $5/$50/50% 4,667$        

Dental Vision Life

Ameritas 550$            81$              

Sun Life 80$              

MetLife 382$            109$            48$              

Concho Valley Community Action Agency

Insurance Premiums Comparison

* current plan with a monthly premium of $5,500

Monthly Premium



Concho Valley Community Action
Agency

Employee Handbook

November 14, 2018
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Core Policies

1.0    Welcome

1.1    A Welcome Policy

Welcome! You have just joined a dedicated organization. We hope that your 
employment with Concho Valley Community Action Agency will be rewarding 
and challenging. We take pride in our employees as well as in the products and 
services we provide.

Concho Valley Community Action Agency complies with all federal and state 
employment laws, and this handbook generally reflects those laws. The Agency
also complies with any applicable local laws, although there may not be an 
express written policy regarding those laws contained in the handbook.

The employment policies and/or benefits summaries in this handbook are 
written for all employees. When questions arise concerning the interpretation of 
these policies as they relate to employees who are covered by a collective-
bargaining agreement, the answers will be determined by reference to the 
actual union contract, rather than the summaries contained in this handbook.

Please take the time now to read this handbook carefully. Sign the 
acknowledgment at the end to show that you have read, understood, and agree 
to the contents of this handbook, which sets out the basic rules and guidelines 
concerning your employment. This handbook supersedes any previously issued
handbooks or policy statements dealing with the subjects discussed herein. The
Agency reserves the right to interpret, modify, or supplement the provisions of 
this handbook at any time. Neither this handbook nor any other communication 
by a management representative or other, whether oral or written, is intended in
any way to create a contract of employment. Please understand that no 
employee handbook can address every situation in the work place.

If you have questions about your employment or any provisions in this 
handbook, contact Lyla Martinez.

We wish you success in your employment here at Concho Valley Community 
Action Agency!

All the best,

Dr. Mark Bethune, Executive Director
Concho Valley Community Action Agency
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1.2    At-Will Employment

Your employment with Concho Valley Community Action Agency is on an "at-
will" basis. This means your employment may be terminated at any time, with or
without notice and with or without cause. Likewise, we respect your right to 
leave the Agency at any time, with or without notice and with or without cause.

Nothing in this handbook or any other Agency document should be understood 
as creating a contract, guaranteed or continued employment, a right to 
termination only "for cause," or any other guarantee of continued benefits or 
employment. Only the Executive Director has the authority to make promises or 
negotiate with regard to guaranteed or continued employment, and any such 
promises are only effective if placed in writing and signed by the Executive 
Director.

If a written contract between you and the Agency is inconsistent with this 
handbook, the written contract is controlling.

Nothing in this handbook will be interpreted, applied, or enforced to interfere 
with, restrain, or coerce employees in the exercise of their rights under Section 
7 of the National Labor Relations Act.

This policy may not be appropriate in its entirety for employees working in 
Montana.
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2.0    Introductory Language and Policies

2.1    About the Company

Authority

The Board of Directors ("the Board") of CVCAA retains ultimate authority for the
Administration of the Agency. However, the Board reserves the right to 
specifically delegate authority to the Executive Director per the Bylaws. The 
Board retains the authority to employ or dismiss the Executive Director. The 
Board retains the power to establish objectives and priorities, and to issue 
broad policy statements for the direction of the Executive Director. The authority
delegated to the Executive Director includes the authority to employ and 
discharge all employees of the Agency. The Executive Director will make "State 
of the CVCAA Reports" at each regular meeting of the Board of Directors. All 
meetings of the CVCAA Board of Directors will be held in compliance with the 
Open Meetings Act and all records subject to the Open Records Act.

History

The Tom Green Community Action Council underwent reorganization on or 
about July 31, 2003. The Texas Department of Community Affairs named an 
Interim Board of Directors charged with reorganizing the Community Action 
Council. The Interim Board of Directors named an Interim Executive Director 
and an Interim Chief Financial Officer. As part of the reorganization plan the 
Council will be hereafter referred to as "Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency".

SERVICE TO THE PUBLIC

On a day-to-day basis, citizens base their opinion of the Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency on the actions of employees like you. The 
Administration has developed a code of personal conduct we think will help 
reinstate a reputation of integrity for the good of the Community and the Concho
Valley Community Action Agency.

•          Remember our Primary Function is to serve the citizens of the Concho 
Valley who are in need.

•          Our responsibility is to provide fair, efficient service in a courteous 
manner.

•          Be a good and sincere listener, our clients want us to understand and 
care about their problems.

•          Learn about of the Services that CVCAA provides so that you can refer a
client to the proper person quickly and efficiently.

•          Document all information that may be needed to best serve the client.

8



•          Fulfill all promises you make.  If you cannot complete a promised task as
anticipated, get back in touch and explain the circumstances.

•          Respect the dignity of every individual; try honestly and sincerely to see 
the other person's point of view; speak kindly; avoid arguments; and be friendly.

•          Be punctual in your work, to your appointments and in meeting 
deadlines.

•          Make suggestions about ways to improve our services.

•          Dress and appearance must be appropriate for the job.

•          CVCAA employees are trustees of public funds; conserve funding as if it 
were your own.

•          Finally, public service requires that we not only obey the law, but it is 
important that we avoid even the appearance of any improper action or use of 
our position to gain personal advantage.

2.2    Company Facilities

The Concho Valley Community Action Agency's corporate office is located at:

 36 E. Twohig, Suite B2

 San Angelo, Texas 76903

Agency phone: 325-653-2411

Agency fax: 325-658-3147

Agency website: cvcaa.org

Agency email: info@cvcaa.org

2.3    Ethics Code

Concho Valley Community Action Agency will conduct business honestly and 
ethically wherever operations are maintained. We strive to improve the quality 
of our services, products, and operations and will maintain a reputation for 
honesty, fairness, respect, responsibility, integrity, trust, and sound business 
judgment. Our managers and employees are expected to adhere to high 
standards of business and personal integrity as a representation of our 
business practices.

We expect that officers, directors, and employees will not knowingly 
misrepresent the Agency and will not speak on behalf of the Agency unless 
specifically authorized. The confidentiality of trade secrets, proprietary 
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information, and similar confidential commercially-sensitive information (i.e. 
financial or sales records/reports, marketing or business strategies/plans, 
product development, customer lists, patents, trademarks, etc.) about the 
Agency or operations, or that of our customers or partners, is to be treated with 
discretion and only disseminated on a need-to-know basis (see policies relating 
to privacy).

Violation of the Code of Ethics can result in discipline, up to and including 
termination of employment. The degree of discipline imposed may be influenced
by the existence of voluntary disclosure of any ethical violation and whether or 
not the violator cooperated in any subsequent investigation.

2.4    Mission Statement

CVCAA provides a variety of services in partnership with community resources 
to improve lives and empower people in the Concho Valley area.

2.5    Organization Policy

COMPASSION: I use compassion in my day to day life through my faith and my
actions with others. Compassion allows us to relate to our fellow humans.
HONESTY: As a person of integrity, I promise to be honest with others as well 
as to myself.
INTEGRITY: Exercising integrity in its three parts is fundamental to who I am as
a person: integrity to mission; integrity to customer; and integrity to self.
RESPECT: We will treat all clients and co-workers the way we wish to be 
treated ourselves; with kindness, honesty, empathy and understanding.
POSITIVE ATTITUDE: We will cultivate an attitude of optimism at CVCAA. We 
will display a positive attitude in everything we do, and display this to our 
customers and other co-workers every day.
ACCOUNTABILITY: I will take responsibility for all my actions I make when 
providing resources to empower and improve the lives of people.
DEDICATION: We are dedicated to our Mission, Vision & Values to better serve
you, our customer, and your needs.
UNDERSTANDING: I will approach each and every person's situation as if it 
were my own.
SERVICE: I will give my hands and heart to serve others knowing that will 
impact current and future generations
KNOWLEDGE: We will continue to seek knowledge, in order to further educate 
ourselves and those we serve.

10



3.0    Hiring and Orientation Policies

3.1    Conflicts of Interest

Concho Valley Community Action Agency is concerned with conflicts of interest 
that create actual or potential job-related concerns, especially in the areas of 
confidentiality, customer relations, safety, security, and morale. If there is any 
actual or potential conflict of interest between you and a competitor, supplier, 
distributor, or contractor to the Agency, you must disclose it to your supervisor. 
If an actual or potential conflict of interest is determined to exist, the Agency will 
take such steps as it deems necessary to reduce or eliminate this conflict. 
Employees will annually sign a conflict of interest statement which will be kept in
the employee's file.

3.2    Employment of Relatives and Friends

We will not employ friends or relatives in circumstances where actual or 
potential conflicts may arise that could compromise supervision, safety, 
confidentiality, security, and morale at Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency. It is your obligation to inform the Agency of any such potential conflict 
so the Agency can determine how best to respond to the particular situation.

3.3    Job Descriptions

Concho Valley Community Action Agency attempts to maintain a job description
for each position. If you do not have a current copy of your job description, you 
should request one from your supervisor.

Job descriptions prepared by the Agency serve as an outline only. Due to 
business needs, you may be required to perform job duties that are not within 
your written job description. Furthermore, the Agency may have to revise, add 
to, or delete from your job duties per business needs. On occasion, the Agency 
may need to revise job descriptions with or without advance notice to 
employees.

If you have any questions regarding your job description or the scope of your 
duties, please speak with your supervisor.

3.4    New Hires and Introductory Periods

The first 90 days of your employment is considered an introductory period. 
During this period, you will become familiar with Concho Valley Community 
Action Agency and your job responsibilities, and we will have the opportunity to 
monitor the quality and value of your performance and make any necessary 
adjustments in your job description or responsibilities. Your introductory period 
with the Agency can be shortened or lengthened as deemed appropriate by 
management and Human Resources. Completion of this introductory period 
does not imply guaranteed or continued employment. Nothing that occurs 
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during or after this period should be construed to change the nature of the "at-
will" employment relationship.

3.5    Posting of Openings

Concho Valley Community Action Agency desires to promote qualified 
employees from within where it believes that is possible, consistent with the 
need to assure that all positions are staffed by highly competent individuals. 
New job openings generally will be posted on our Internet site, as well as be 
distributed through agency email.

3.6    Training Program

In most cases, and for most departments, training employees is done on an 
individual basis by the department manager. Even if you have had previous 
experience in the specified functions of your job duties, it is necessary for you to
learn our specific procedures, as well as the responsibilities of the specific 
position. If you ever feel you require additional training, consult your direct 
supervisor. If, after contacting your direct supervisor, you still feel that you do 
not have the tools to perform at an adequate lever, contact the Executive 
Director.

3.7    Affirmative Action Policy for Federal Contractors

As a federal contractor, it is the policy of Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency to take affirmative action as called for by applicable laws and executive 
orders to:

 Provide equal employment opportunities to all qualified persons and 
recruit, hire, train, terminate, promote, and compensate persons in all 
jobs without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender identity, national origin, age, disability, genetic information or 
characteristics, protected veteran status, or other protected 
classifications in accordance with federal law.

 Administer personnel actions in areas such as compensation, benefits, 
transfers, layoffs and recalls, Agency-sponsored education training, 
tuition assistance, and social and recreational programs to ensure that 
no employees are discriminated against.

 Ensure employment decisions are made in furtherance of the objective of
equal employment including, but not limited to:

o Recruitment and selection – Recruitment and hiring of all 
personnel is accomplished without discrimination against any 
individual whose status is protected by applicable state or local 
law.

o Promotion – Individuals will be upgraded and promoted on the 
basis of their abilities, skills, and experience. The Agency will 
undertake good faith efforts to ensure that minority and women 
employees, disabled individuals, and covered veterans, who are 
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qualified, as well as those who become qualified through training, 
are considered for promotion.

o Transfers – When vacancies occur, the Agency will make every 
good faith effort to effect transfers of qualified minority and women
employees, disabled individuals, and covered veterans, into areas
where such employees may have been or may now be 
underutilized.

o Terminations – When reductions in Agency work force occur, 
they will be based on nondiscriminatory factors and make every 
good faith effort to ensure that minorities and women, disabled 
individuals, and covered veterans are treated in a 
nondiscriminatory manner.

Applicants and employees will not be subjected to harassment, intimidation, or 
any type of retaliation because they have:

 Filed a complaint;
 Assisted or participated in an investigation, compliance review, or any 

other activity related to the administration of any federal, state, or local 
law requiring equal employment opportunity;

 Opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any federal, state, or local
law requiring equal opportunity; or

 Exercised any other legal right protected by federal, state, or local law 
requiring equal opportunity.

3.8    Employment Authorization Verification

New hires will be required to complete Section 1 of federal Form I-9 on the first 
day of paid employment and must present acceptable documents authorized by
the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services proving identity and employment 
authorization no later than the third business day following the start of 
employment with Concho Valley Community Action Agency. If you are currently 
employed and have not complied with this requirement or if your status has 
changed, inform human resourses.

If you are authorized to work in this country for a limited period of time, you will 
be required to submit proof of renewed employment eligibility prior to expiration 
of that period to remain employed by the Agency.
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4.0    Wage and Hour Policies

4.1    Attendance Policy

If you know ahead of time that you will be absent or late, provide reasonable 
advance notice to your supervisor. You may be required to provide 
documentation of any medical or other excuse for being absent or late where 
permitted by applicable law.

Concho Valley Community Action Agency reserves the right to apply unused 
vacation, sick time, or other paid time off to unauthorized absences. Absences 
resulting from approved leave, vacation, or legal requirements are exceptions to
the policy.

4.2    Business Expenses Policy

The purpose of this policy is to define approved nontravel business expenses 
and the authority for incurring and approving such expenses at Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency.

Approved business expenses are the reasonable and necessary expenses 
incurred by employees to achieve legitimate business purposes that are not 
covered by normal Agency procurement processes.

Business Meetings (Employer-Sponsored Events and Meetings)

The Agency pays for expenses necessary to achieve a valid business purpose 
when meetings are held with customers, vendors, or other Agency employees. 
The most senior Agency individual present is to pay for and report all expenses.

The Agency will make every effort to have a master account set up for Agency-
wide and large group events. However, if you are at a small meeting or staying 
by yourself at a hotel, pay individually and submit for reimbursement 
accordingly.

Entertainment

The Agency pays for entertainment expenses only when they clearly benefit the
Agency and include customers and are promotional in nature. The most senior 
individual present is to pay for and report all expenses.

Technical and Training Seminars

The Agency pays for expenses associated with attendance at classes and 
seminars that enhance job-related skills. Prior approval must be obtained by 
your supervisor.

Gifts
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You may present gifts only under exceptional circumstances and with prior 
approval of the appropriate Company officer.

Other Expenses

The Agency will pay for postage and telephone expenses that are for business 
purposes.

Reporting

Report approved expenses on the standard expense report form and include a 
description of the expense, its business purpose, date, place, and the 
participants.

4.3    Introduction to Wage and Hour Policies

At Concho Valley Community Action Agency, pay depends on a wide range of 
factors, including pay scale surveys, individual effort, profits, and market forces. 
If you have any questions about your compensation, including matters such as 
paid time off, commissions, overtime, benefits, or paycheck deductions, speak 
with your supervisor.

4.4    Job Abandonment

If you fail to show up for work or call in with an acceptable reason for the 
absence for a period of three consecutive days, you will be considered to have 
abandoned your job and voluntarily resigned from Concho Valley Community 
Action Agency.

4.5    Travel Expenses

The purpose of this policy is to define approved business travel expenses and 
the authority for incurring and approving such expenses at Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency.

Travel expenses are the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by 
employees when traveling on approved Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency business trips. Travel is limited to business activities for which other 
means of communication is inadequate and for which prior approval from your 
supervisor has been received.

Advances

Travel advances must be approved by Executive Director. Travel Advance form 
must be completed. Upon return, an Expense Report is to be completed and 
any discrepancy between the Advance Report and Expense Report will be 
rectified.

Travel Expenses
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The Agency pays the actual amounts incurred for appropriate expenses when 
you are on travel assignments. Examples of typical expenses include the 
following:

 Airline tickets.
 Meals and lodging.
 Car rental, bus, taxi, parking.
 Telephone and fax.
 Laundry and dry cleaning (trips exceeding one week only, unless 

emergency).
 Business supplies and services.
 Associated gratuities.
 Other expenses necessary to achieve the business purposes.

Family Members

The Agency will not pay the travel expenses of spouses or other family 
members.

Air Travel

Use economy or tourist class airfares when traveling on Agency business. In 
addition, private, noncommercial aircraft or chartered aircraft is not to be used, 
and no more than two Agency officers should travel together on the same flight.

Airfare is typically paid through corporate account. On the rare occasion that 
airfares is charged to personal credit cards, the charge is to be included in the 
Travel Expense Form.

Hotels

Neither in-room movies nor refreshment bars are approved Agency expenses.

Insurance

The Agency does not pay for personal travel insurance for employees.

Rental Cars

You are to use rental firms having existing relationships with the Agency and, 
where feasible, have negotiated discount rates. Available reasonable 
transportation is to be used.

Personal Vehicles

Concho Valley Community Action Agency typically provides agency vehicles for
agency usage. However, there may be occasion when use of personal vehicle 
is warranted. When using your own vehicle for business purposes, you must 
maintain insurance coverage as required by law and may not have more than 2 
points on your driving record. Travel between your home and primary office is 
not considered to be business travel. You may not use your personal vehicle for
business travel without authorization. Every attempt should be made to utilize 
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the use of courier and delivery services in order to avoid hazard of liability and 
the time away from work. You will be reimbursed for vehicle use at the standard
IRS mileage rate. The Executive Director must authorize any deviation from this
policy.

Reporting

Report approved expenses and include a description of the expense, its 
business purpose, date, place, and the participants.

Travel Reservations

Airline travel, rental cars, and hotels must be booked through the corporate 
designated travel agency in order to be reimbursed.

4.6    Use of Employer Credit Cards

All employees in the possession of a credit card issued by Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency will adhere to the strictest guidelines of responsibility
for the protection and proper use of that card. Credit card purchases related to 
Agency vehicle use (gas, oil, etc.) under $100 do not require prior approval. 
Credit card purchases for vehicle use over $100 and any other business 
purchases over $25 must receive prior approval from the Executive Director.

Submit all sales receipts generated by use of the Agency credit card 
immediately to your Supervisor. Your Agency credit card may not be used for 
personal reasons. Use of the Agency credit card is restricted to approved 
business related expenses.

Any unauthorized purchases made with a credit card issued by the Agency will 
be the cardholder's responsibility. You must reimburse any such purchase to 
the Agency within 30 days.

Immediately report lost or stolen Agency cards to the Executive Director. Failure
to follow this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
discharge.
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5.0    Performance, Discipline, Layoff, and Termination

5.1    Exit Interview

You may be asked to participate in an exit interview when you leave Concho 
Valley Community Action Agency. The purpose of the exit interview is to provide
management with greater insight into your decision to leave employment; 
identify any trends requiring attention or opportunities for improvement; and to 
assist the Agency in developing effective recruitment and retention strategies. 
Your cooperation in the exit interview process is appreciated.

5.2    Outside Employment

Outside employment that creates a conflict of interest or that affects the quality 
or value of your work performance or availability at Concho Valley Community 
Action Agency is prohibited. The Agency recognizes that you may seek 
additional employment during off hours, but in all cases expects that any 
outside employment will not affect job performance, work hours, or scheduling, 
or otherwise adversely affect your ability to effectively perform your duties. Any 
conflicts should be reported to your Supervisor. Failure to adhere to this policy 
may result in discipline up to and including termination.

5.3    Pay Raises

Depending on financial health and other Agency factors, efforts will be made to 
give pay raises consistent with Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
profitability, job performance, and the consumer price index. The Agency may 
also make individual pay raises based on merit or due to a change of job 
position.

5.4    Performance Improvement

Concho Valley Community Action Agency will make efforts to periodically 
review your work performance. The performance improvement process will take
place annually, or as business needs dictate. You may specifically request that 
your manager or supervisor assist you in developing a performance 
improvement plan at any time.

The performance improvement process is a means for increasing the quality 
and value of your work performance. Your initiative, effort, attitude, job 
knowledge, and other factors will be addressed. You must understand that a 
positive job performance review does not guarantee a pay raise or continued 
employment. Pay raises and promotions are based on numerous factors, only 
one of which is job performance.
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5.5    Problem Solving Procedures

Concho Valley Community Action Agency strives to provide a comfortable, 
productive, legal, and ethical work environment. To this end, we want you to 
bring any problems, concerns, or grievances you have about the workplace to 
the attention of your supervisor and, if necessary, to Human Resources or 
upper level management. To help manage conflict resolution we have instituted 
the following problem solving procedure:

If you believe there is inappropriate conduct or activity on the part of the 
Agency, management, its employees, vendors, customers, or any other persons
or entities related to the Agency, bring your concerns to the attention of your 
supervisor at a time and place that will allow the person to properly listen to 
your concern. Most problems can be resolved informally through dialogue 
between you and your immediate supervisor. If you have already brought this 
matter to the attention of your supervisor before and do not believe you have 
received a sufficient response, or if you believe that person is the source of the 
problem, present your concerns to the Executive Director. Describe the 
problem, those persons involved in the problem, efforts you have made to 
resolve the problem, and any suggested solution you may have.

5.6    Promotions

To match you with the job for which you are best suited and to meet the 
business needs of Concho Valley Community Action Agency, you may be 
transferred from your current job. It is our policy to promote from within only 
when the most qualified candidate is available. Promotions are made on an 
equal opportunity basis according to employees possessing the needed skills, 
education, experience, and other qualifications that are required for the job.

5.7    Standards of Conduct

Concho Valley Community Action Agency wishes to create a work environment 
that promotes job satisfaction, respect, responsibility, integrity, and value for all 
our employees, clients, customers, and other stakeholders. We all share in the 
responsibility of improving the quality of our work environment. By deciding to 
work here, you agree to follow our rules.

While it is impossible to list everything that could be considered misconduct in 
the workplace, what is outlined here is a list of common-sense infractions that 
could result in discipline, up to and including immediate termination of 
employment. This policy is not intended to limit our right to discipline or 
discharge employees for any reason permitted by law.

Examples of inappropriate conduct include:

 Violation of the policies and procedures set forth in this handbook.
 Possessing, using, distributing, selling, or negotiating the sale of illegal 

drugs or other controlled substances.
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 Being under the influence of alcohol during working hours on Agency 
property (including Agency vehicles), or on Agency business.

 Inaccurate reporting of the hours worked by you or any other employees.
 Providing knowingly inaccurate, incomplete, or misleading information 

when speaking on behalf of the Agency or in the preparation of any 
employment related documents including, but not limited to, job 
applications, personnel files, employment review documents, intra-
company communications, or expense records.

 Taking or destroying Agency property.
 Possession of potentially hazardous or dangerous property (where not 

permitted) such as firearms, weapons, chemicals, etc., without prior 
authorization.

 Fighting with, or harassment of (as defined in our EEO policies), any 
fellow employee, vendor, or customer.

 Disclosure of Agency trade secrets and proprietary and confidential 
commercially-sensitive information (i.e. financial or sales records/reports,
marketing or business strategies/plans, product development 
information, customer lists, patents, trademarks, etc.) of the Agency or its
customers, contractors, suppliers, or vendors.

 Refusal or failure to follow directions or to perform a requested or 
required job task.

 Refusal or failure to follow safety rules and procedures.
 Excessive tardiness or absences.
 Smoking in nondesignated areas.
 Working unauthorized overtime.
 Solicitation of fellow employees on Agency premises during working time

(refer to policy on nonsolicitation).
 Failure to dress according to Agency policy.
 Use of obscene or harassing (as defined by our EEO policies) language 

in the workplace.
 Engaging in outside employment that interferes with your ability to 

perform your job at this Agency.
 Gambling on Agency premises.
 Lending keys or keycards to Agency property to unauthorized persons.

Nothing in this policy is intended to limit your rights under the National Labor 
Relations Act (NLRA).

5.8    Transfers

Concho Valley Community Action Agency may transfer your employment from 
one position to another with or without notice, as required by production or 
service needs, or upon request by you and with management approval. 
Transfers in excess of 90 days may be considered final and your paycheck may
be increased or decreased consistent with the pay scale for your new position.

5.9    Workforce Reductions (Layoffs)

If necessary based upon business needs, Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency management may decide to implement a reduction in force (RIF). We 

20



acknowledge that RIFs can be a trying experience for all involved, and the 
Agency will make its best effort to make sound business decisions while 
acknowledging the needs of its workforce.
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6.0    General Policies

6.1    Authorization for Use of Personal Vehicle

All employees required to operate a motor vehicle as part of their employment 
duties must maintain a valid driver's license, acceptable driving record, and 
appropriate insurance coverage. Concho Valley Community Action Agency may
run a motor vehicle department check to determine your driving record. It is 
your responsibility to provide a copy of your current driver's license and 
insurance coverage for your personnel file. Any changes in your driving record, 
including, but not limited to, driving infractions or changes to your insurance 
policy, must be reported to the Agency.

If you use your personal vehicle in the course and scope of employment, you 
may not operate such vehicle while:

1. Under the influence of drugs, alcohol, or any other substance that might 
impair your judgment or ability to drive; or

2. Texting, emailing, or otherwise using a cell phone or other handheld 
device without utilizing a hands-free device.

6.2    Bulletin Boards

Concho Valley Community Action Agency maintains an official bulletin board 
located at 36 E. Twohig, Suite B2, San Angelo, Texas for providing employees 
with official Agency notices, including wage and hour laws, changes in policies, 
and other employment-related notices. At times the Agency may also post 
information of general interest to employees on the bulletin board. You are 
responsible for being informed about this material by periodically reviewing the 
bulletin board. Only authorized personnel may add and remove notices from the
bulletin board.

6.3    Driving Record

All employees required to operate a motor vehicle as part of their employment 
duties at Concho Valley Community Action Agency must maintain a valid 
driver's license and acceptable driving record. The Agency may run a motor 
vehicle department check to determine your driving record. It is your 
responsibility to provide a copy of your current driver's license for your 
personnel file. Any changes in your driving record, including but not limited to 
driving infractions, must be reported to the Agency.

State law requires all motorists to carry auto liability insurance. It is against the 
law to drive without insurance. If you use your own vehicle as a part of your 
employment duties, you must provide management with a current proof of 
insurance statement or card. New proof of insurance is required every time your
policy expires and renews.
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6.4    Employer Sponsored Social Events

Concho Valley Community Action Agency holds periodic social events for 
employees. Be advised that your attendance at these events is voluntary and 
does not constitute part of your work-related duties. Any exceptions to this 
policy must be in writing and signed by a supervisor prior to the event.

Alcoholic beverages may be available at these events. If you choose to drink 
alcoholic beverages, you must do so in a responsible manner. Do not drink and 
drive. Instead, please call a taxi or appoint a designated driver.

6.5    Employer-Provided Cell Phone/Mobile Device Policy

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance to departments and employees
regarding eligibility for Concho Valley Community Action Agency-provided cell 
phones and plans, and the appropriate use of the phone and plan.

You must have a legitimate business need for a cell phone/mobile device and 
the issuance of same must be approved by your supervisor. The typical 
legitimate reasons employees may need a cell phone/mobile device include 
frequent business travel or for key personnel who must be immediately 
reachable during an emergency.

When the cell phone/mobile device is used for personal reasons and the activity
results in additional cost to the Agency, you are responsible for the cost of that 
usage, including all applicable taxes. Make note of personal calls and reimburse
the Agency after review of the monthly call detail.

If the cell phone/mobile device has a flat rate airtime/data plan, you are 
responsible for reimbursing the Agency when personal activities cause the plan 
threshold to be exceeded. With concurrence of an authorized signer on the 
account, you should determine the amount of personal use that caused the 
usage to exceed the plan and reimburse the Agency for that amount plus all 
applicable taxes. If you drive a vehicle during your employment, you may not 
use any cell phone/mobile device or other communication device while driving 
unless the device is equipped or configured with a "hands-free" 
listening/speaking option, and you in fact utilize the hands-free device. This 
option must be approved by your supervisor.

The Agency owns and remains entitled to all cell phone/mobile devices, 
including all passwords controlling access to them. You may not change those 
passwords except with permission. At the time of employment termination, all 
such equipment and passwords must be returned to the Agency in operable 
condition.

6.6    Incentive Programs

Each December following a full-time employee of CVCAA's second anniversary 
date, that employee shall, subject to budgetary constraints as determined by 
Executive Director, receive a longevity benefit based on the following scale:
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2 years = $200
3 years = $300
4 years = $400
5 years = $500
6 years = $600
7 years = $700
8 years = $800
9 years = $900
10 years and above = $1000

6.7    Mail Use Policy

You are required to limit usage of the Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
mail service to business purposes only. You may not use the Agency address to
receive personal mail. Do not use the Agency postage meter for your personal 
mail. Report any suspicious packages or envelopes to the Executive 
Director immediately.

6.8    Nonsolicitation/Nondistribution Policy

To avoid disruption of business operations or disturbance of employees, 
visitors, and others, Concho Valley Community Action Agency has implemented
a Nonsolicitation/Nondistribution Policy. For purposes of this policy, "solicitation"
includes, but is not limited to, selling items or services, requesting contributions,
and soliciting or seeking to obtain membership in or support for any 
organization. Solicitation performed through verbal, written, or electronic means 
is covered by the Nonsolicitation/Nondistribution Policy.

You are prohibited from soliciting other employees during your assigned 
working time. For this purpose, working time means time during which either 
you or the employees who are the object of the solicitation are expected to be 
actively engaged with assigned work. You may conduct solicitations during your
lunch period, coffee breaks, or other authorized nonworking time, so long as 
you do so when the other employees are also on nonworking time.

To avoid inappropriate litter, clutter, and safety risks, you may not distribute 
literature or other items that are not work related in working areas at any time. 
Working areas do not include break/rest areas, lunch rooms, or parking lots. 
Electronic distribution of materials is prohibited during work time. Literature that 
violates the company's equal employment opportunity (EEO) and 
nonharassment policies (including threats of violence), or is knowingly and 
recklessly false, is never permitted. Non-employees are not permitted to 
distribute materials on company premises at any time.

This policy is not intended to restrict the statutory rights of employees, including 
the right to discuss terms and conditions of employment.

Violations of this policy should be reported to supervisor.
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6.9    Off-Duty Use of Employer Property or Premises

You may not use Concho Valley Community Action Agency property for 
personal use during working time. You are responsible for returning Agency 
property in good condition and repairing or replacing any property damaged as 
the result of personal use or as the result of negligence. This includes use of 
copy machines, computers, Agency products, or office supplies for personal use
without prior authorization.

It is Agency policy to control off duty and nonworking hour use of Agency 
facilities either for business or personal reasons. You are prohibited from using 
Agency facilities during off duty or nonworking hours without the written consent
of your supervisor. If you use Agency facilities during your off-duty hours or 
Agency off-hours, you may be required to sign a log-in and log-out sheet 
maintained by the Agency or building manager.

6.10    Open Door Policy

At Concho Valley Community Action Agency, we welcome suggestions for 
continued improvement and welcome your ideas for better ways to do your job, 
produce or sell the products or services of our Agency, or meet customer and 
client needs. Discuss your ideas with your supervisor or another member of the 
management team.

We also encourage you to offer any suggestions derived from seminars, 
magazines, or other outside sources of information you believe would add value
to the Agency.

Understand that any suggestions, innovations, inventions, or other matter 
created by you on work time or with Agency tools or property are considered to 
be the property of the Agency.

6.11    Personal Appearance

Your personal appearance reflects on the reputation, integrity, and public image
of Concho Valley Community Action Agency. All employees are required to 
report to work neatly groomed and dressed. You are expected to maintain 
personal hygiene habits that are generally accepted in the community, including
clean clothing, good grooming and personal hygiene, and appropriate attire for 
the workplace and the work being performed. This may include wearing 
uniforms or protective safety clothing and equipment, depending upon the job. 
Use common sense and good judgment in determining what to wear to work.

Fragrant products, including but not limited to perfumes, colognes, and scented 
body lotions or hair products, should be used in moderation out of concern for 
others with sensitivities or allergies.

The Agency will make every effort to reasonably accommodate employees with 
disabilities or with religious beliefs that make it difficult for them to comply fully 
with the personal appearance policy. Contact your supervisor to request a 
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reasonable accommodation.

Failure to comply with the personal appearance standards may result in being 
sent home to groom or change clothes. Frequent violations may result in 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

6.12    Personal Cell Phone/Mobile Device Use

While Concho Valley Community Action Agency permits employees to bring 
personal cell phones and other mobile devices (i.e. smart phones, PDAs, 
tablets, laptops) into the workplace, you must not allow the use of such devices 
to interfere with your job duties or impact workplace safety and health.

Use of personal cell phones and mobile devices at work can be distracting and 
disruptive and cause a loss of productivity. Thus, you should primarily use such 
personal devices during nonworking time, such as breaks and meal periods. 
During this time, use devices in a manner that is courteous to those around you.
Outside of nonworking time, use of such devices should be minimal and limited 
to emergency use only. If you have a device that has a camera and/or 
audio/video recording capability, you are restricted from using those functions 
on Agency property unless authorized in advance by management or when they
are used in a manner consistent with your right to engage in concerted activity 
under section 7 of the National Labor Relations Act (NLRA).

You are expected to comply with Agency policies regarding the protection of 
confidential and proprietary information when using personal devices.

While operating a vehicle on work time, the Agency requires that the driver's 
personal cell phone/mobile device be turned off. If you need to make or receive 
a phone call while driving, pull off the road to a safe location unless you have 
the correct hands-free equipment for the device that is in compliance with 
applicable state laws.

You may not connect your personal device to the Agency network or to Agency 
equipment (computers, printers, etc.). 

You may have the opportunity to use your personal devices for work purposes. 
Before using a personal device for work-related purposes, you must obtain 
written authorization from management. The use of personal devices is limited 
to certain employees and may be limited based on compatibility of technology. 
To ensure the security of Agency information, antivirus and firewall must be up-
to-date and used. If you are authorized to use a personal device, you will 
receive a monthly stipend based on the estimated use of the device. If you 
obtain or currently have a plan that exceeds the monthly stipend, the Agency 
will not be liable for the cost difference.

Nothing in this policy is intended to prevent employees from engaging in 
protected concerted activity under the NLRA.
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You will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of 
employment for violation of this policy.

6.13    Personal Data Changes

It is your obligation to provide Concho Valley Community Action Agency with 
your current contact information, including current mailing address and 
telephone number. Inform the Agency of any changes to your marital or tax 
withholding status. Failure to do so may result in loss of benefits or delayed 
receipt of W-2 and other mailings. To make changes to this information, contact 
Human Resources.

6.14    Security

All employees are responsible for helping to make Concho Valley Community 
Action Agency a secure work environment. Upon leaving work, lock all desks, 
lockers, and doors protecting valuable or sensitive material in your work area 
and report any lost or stolen keys, passes, or similar devices to your supervisor 
immediately. Refrain from discussing specifics regarding Agency security 
systems, alarms, passwords, etc. with those outside of the Agency.

Immediately advise your supervisor of any known or potential security risks 
and/or suspicious conduct of employees, customers, or guests of the Agency. 
Safety and security is the responsibility of all employees and we rely on you to 
help us keep our premises secure.

6.15    Social Media Policy

At Concho Valley Community Action Agency, we recognize the Internet 
provides unique opportunities to participate in interactive discussions and share 
information using a wide variety of social media. However, use of social media 
also presents certain risks and carries with it certain responsibilities. To 
minimize risks to the Agency, you are expected to follow our guidelines for 
appropriate use of social media.

This policy applies to all employees who work for the Agency.

Guidelines

For purposes of this policy, social media includes all means of communicating 
or posting information or content of any sort on the Internet, including to your 
own or someone else's web log or blog, journal or diary, personal website, 
social networking or affinity website, web bulletin board or a chat room, whether
associated or affiliated with the Agency, as well as any other form of electronic 
communication.

Agency principles, guidelines, and policies apply to online activities just as they 
apply to other areas of work. Ultimately, you are solely responsible for what you 
communicate in social media. You may be personally responsible for any 
litigation that may arise should you make unlawful defamatory, slanderous, or 
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libelous statements against any customer, manager, owner, or employees of 
the Agency.

Know and Follow the Rules

Ensure your postings are consistent with these guidelines. Postings that include
unlawful discriminatory remarks, harassment, and threats of violence or other 
unlawful conduct will not be tolerated and may subject you to disciplinary action 
up to and including termination.

Be Respectful

The Agency cannot force or mandate respectful and courteous activity by 
employees on social media during nonworking time. If you decide to post 
complaints or criticism, avoid using statements, photographs, video, or audio 
that reasonably could be viewed as unlawful, slanderous, threatening, or that 
might constitute unlawful harassment. Examples of such conduct might include 
defamatory or slanderous posts meant to harm someone's reputation or posts 
that could contribute to a hostile work environment on the basis of race, sex, 
disability, age, national origin, religion, veteran status, or any other status or 
class protected by law or Agency policy. Your personal posts and social media 
activity should not reflect upon or refer to the Agency.

Maintain Accuracy and Confidentiality

When posting information:

 Maintain the confidentiality of trade secrets, intellectual property, and 
confidential commercially-sensitive information (i.e. financial or sales 
records/reports, marketing or business strategies/plans, product 
development, customer lists, patents, trademarks, etc.) related to the 
Agency.

 Do not create a link from your personal blog, website, or other social 
networking site to a Agency website that identifies you as speaking on 
behalf of the Agency.

 Never represent yourself as a spokesperson for the Agency. If the 
Agency is a subject of the content you are creating, do not represent 
yourself as speaking on behalf of the Agency. Make it clear in your social
media activity that you are speaking on your own behalf.

 Respect copyright, trademark, third-party rights, and similar laws and use
such protected information in compliance with applicable legal standards.

Using Social Media at Work

Do not use social media while on your work time, unless it is work related as 
authorized by your manager or consistent with policies that cover equipment 
owned by the Agency.

Media Contacts
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If you are not authorized to speak on behalf of the Agency, do not speak to the 
media on behalf of the Agency. Direct all media inquiries for official Agency 
responses to Human Resources.

Retaliation and Your Rights

Retaliation or any other negative action is prohibited against anyone who, 
based on a reasonable belief, reports a possible deviation from this policy or 
cooperates in an investigation. Those who retaliate against others for reporting 
a possible deviation from this policy or for cooperating in an investigation will be
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Nothing in this policy is designed to interfere with, restrain, or prevent 
employees from communications regarding wages, hours, or other terms and 
conditions of employment, or to restrain employees in exercising any other right 
protected by law. All employees have the right to engage in or refrain from such 
activities.

6.16    Telephone Use

Concho Valley Community Action Agency phones are principally for work-
related communications. Unless there is an emergency, limit long distance 
telephone calls to business purposes only. Limit personal use of Agency 
telephones to brief communications during rest periods where possible. Casual 
conversation with friends and relatives during working hours is strongly 
discouraged. Telephone use is subject to the Voicemail/Email/Internet Usage 
Policy.

6.17    Third Party Disclosures

From time to time, Concho Valley Community Action Agency may become 
involved in news stories or potential or actual legal proceedings of various 
kinds. When that happens, lawyers, former employees, newspapers, law 
enforcement agencies, and other outside persons may contact our employees 
to obtain information about the incident or the actual or potential lawsuit.

If you receive such a contact, you should not speak on behalf of the Agency and
should refer any call requesting the position of the Agency to the Executive 
Director. If you have any questions about this policy or are not certain what to 
do when such a contact is made, contact the Executive Director.

6.18    Use of Employer Vehicles

Company vehicles are to be used for Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
business only. Unless the use of the vehicle has been approved for personal 
use, personal or outside business use is strictly prohibited.

If you drive a Agency vehicle, all infractions or violations while driving the 
vehicle and all restrictions, suspensions, or revocations against your driver's 
license must be immediately reported to supervisor.
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When a Agency vehicle cannot be operated, is unsafe for use, or has been 
damaged, notify your supervisor immediately.

As the driver of a Agency vehicle, you are responsible for the vehicle while in 
your charge and must not permit unauthorized persons to drive it. You are also 
responsible for the daily housekeeping of the vehicle; it is to remain clean and 
uncluttered.

You may not operate a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or a 
chemical substance or other substance that can impair judgment. You may not 
operate a motor vehicle while texting, emailing, or otherwise using a cell phone 
or other handheld device without utilizing a hands-free device.

Multiple driving moving violations that appear on the annual state department of
motor vehicle check will result in suspension of rights to drive a Agency vehicle 
or drive a personal vehicle on Agency business. Suspension of rights will 
continue until one year has passed with no infractions. If there are persistent 
and ongoing problems with driving infractions, and driving a vehicle is a part of 
successful execution of job responsibilities, you may be terminated.

6.19    Workplace Privacy and Right to Inspect

Concho Valley Community Action Agency property, including but not limited to 
lockers, phones, computers, tablets, desks, work place areas, vehicles, or 
machinery, remains under the control of the Agency and is subject to inspection
at any time, without notice to any employees, and without their presence.

You should have no expectation of privacy in any of these areas. We assume 
no responsibility for the loss of, or damage to, your property maintained on 
Agency premises including that kept in lockers and desks.
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7.0    Benefits

7.1    401(k) Plan

All regular full-time employees who have completed at least 90 days of 
employment at Concho Valley Community Action Agency are eligible to 
participate in the 401(k) plan. The Agency provides matching funds of $1 for 
each dollar you contribute up to a maximum Agency contribution of 3% of 
salary per year. As with your insurance benefits, refer to your Summary Plan 
Description (SPD) provided by the benefits administrator for specifics. If you 
have further questions about pension or profit sharing rights, consult with the 
benefits administrator. This benefit, as well as other benefits, may be canceled 
or changed at the discretion of the Agency, unless otherwise required by law.

7.2    Bereavement Leave

Concho Valley Community Action Agency recognizes the importance of taking 
leave when there is a death in the family. You are entitled to take up to 3 days 
off with pay for the funeral of an immediate relative. Pay is based on the regular 
rate for an eight-hour day. Authorized leave without pay is available for 
extended funeral matters. Personal leave time may also be taken when 
necessary. Notify Human Resources of your intention to take bereavement 
leave as soon as the need arises. The Agency may request documentation to 
support absences for bereavement leave.

7.3    Continuing Education Policy and Tuition Assistance

We believe in the continuing education of our employees. If Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency sends you to a class or training program during 
normal working hours related to your employment and you are nonexempt, you 
will be paid training pay for that time. If you are interested in attending an 
outside class and having the Agency pay for your attendance, you are required 
to provide advance written notice describing the class, including the subject 
matter, length, and cost. Depending on the type of training, the Agency may 
reimburse some or all of the fees, including materials expenses, meals, and 
transportation. If your supervisor approves of your attendance at a class that is 
not sponsored by the Agency, you will be reimbursed once you have attended 
and paid for the class.

7.4    Dental Insurance

All regular full-time employees who have completed 90 days of employment at 
Concho Valley Community Action Agency are eligible for the Agency dental 
plan. Dental plan benefits are described in detail in the Summary Plan 
Description (SPD).
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7.5    Exempt Personnel

If you are classified as exempt at the time of your hiring or promotion, you are 
not eligible for overtime pay as otherwise required by federal, state, or local 
laws. If you have a question regarding whether you are exempt or nonexempt, 
contact your supervisor for clarification.

7.6    Holidays

Concho Valley Community Action Agency offers the following paid holidays 
each year:

New Year's Day; Martin Luther King's Birthday; President's Day; Good Friday; 
Memorial Day; Independence Day; Labor Day; Veteran's Day; Thanksgiving 
Day and the Friday following Thanksgiving; Christmas Eve; and Christmas Day.
CVCAA also observes Bank Holidays.

An employee will have one day paid leave for their birthday.

When a holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed the preceding Friday. 
Holidays falling on a Sunday will be observed the following Monday.

If a holiday falls on your regular day off, ask your supervisor how it affects you.

You will be compensated for holidays in accordance with federal and state law.

7.7    Leaves of Absence

DEFINITIONS
Accruals -   Leave time accruals are determined by the board of directors and   
are computed and posted by the payroll department.
Leave Time -   Leave time is time during normal working hours in which an   
employee does not engage in the performance of job duties. Leave time may be
either paid or unpaid. Leave accruals are computed by the payroll system. 
Holidays -   Holidays are days designated by CVCAA when CVCAA offices are   
closed on what otherwise would be regular business days.
Unauthorized Absence -   An unauthorized absence is one in which the   
employee is absent from regular duty without permission of the supervisor or 
Executive Director. Employees are not paid for unauthorized absences.

APPROVAL OF LEAVE   The employee's supervisor must approve all leave   
taken by CVCAA employees.

VACATION LEAVE   Regular, full-time employees will earn annual leave at the   
rate of four hours per semi-monthly pay period for the first five years of 
employment. In the sixth through the tenth year of employment, such 
employees will earn annual leave at the rate of five hours per semi-monthly pay 
period. After the tenth year of employment, such employees will earn annual 
leave at the rate of six hours per semi-monthly pay period. Leave is calculated 
using the annual hire date of each employee.
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Regular, part-time employees will earn annual leave at the rate of two hours per
semi-monthly pay period.

Maximum Accrual - Annual leave may accrue to not more than 144 hours.

Upon resignation or separation, the balance of vacation days will be paid at the 
rate of pay in effect at the time of termination.

EMERGENCY LEAVE   Employees are allowed three paid emergency leave   
days per year. Emergency leave can be used for funerals of immediate family. 
For this purpose, immediate family is defined as the third degree of 
consanguinity (blood) or affinity (marriage). Emergency leave does not accrue 
from year to year and is canceled upon termination of employment without 
compensation to the employee.

CIVIL LEAVE   Employees are granted civil leave with pay for jury duty, for   
serving as a subpoenaed witness in an official proceeding that involves CVCAA,
and for the purpose of voting. Employees must notify the appropriate supervisor
prior to taking civil leave. When an employee has completed civil leave, he or 
she must report to CVCAA for duty for the remainder of the workday. If the 
employee will be absent from work for more than one workday on civil leave, he
or she must notify the appropriate supervisor daily at the beginning of the 
workday.

INJURY LEAVE   For information on occupational disability or injury leave for   
bona fide, on-the-job, work-related injuries, please see the sections in this 
manual under the main heading Health and Safety.

ABANDONMENT OF POSITION   The Executive Director will consider   
unauthorized absence from work for a period of three consecutive working days
as a resignation. Unless the Executive Director determines otherwise, the 
resignation is not in good standing and the employee is not eligible for 
reemployment.

7.8    Life Insurance

Concho Valley Community Action Agency provides life insurance to all regular 
full-time employees who have completed 90 of employment with the Agency. 
You will be required to notify the benefits administrator of your intended 
beneficiary. Refer to the Summary Plan Description (SPD) for details about the 
benefit.

7.9    Pension and Profit Sharing Plan

All regular full-time employees who have completed at least 90 of employment 
at Concho Valley Community Action Agency are eligible to participate in the 
profit sharing plan. After a specified period of employment, this plan provides 
you with a vested interest related to your length of employment. The Agency 
contributes on your behalf to the plan.
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As with your insurance benefits, refer to the Summary Plan Description (SPD) 
provided by the benefits administrator for specifics or contact Human 
Resources for more information.

7.10    Regular Full-Time Personnel

Regular full-time employees are those who have completed their introductory 
period and are regularly scheduled to work more than 32 hours per week. 
Unless stated otherwise or specifically permitted by law, all the benefits 
provided to employees at Concho Valley Community Action Agency are for 
regular full-time employees only. This includes vacation, holiday pay, health 
insurance, and other benefits coverage.

7.11    Regular Part-Time Personnel

All employees who work fewer than 32 hours per week are considered part 
time. Part-time employees are not eligible for Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency benefits unless specified otherwise in this handbook, in the benefit plan 
summaries, or specifically permitted by law.

7.12    Sick Pay

Concho Valley Community Action Agency allows its regular full-time employees 
who have completed their introductory period (see chart below) sick days per 
calendar year. Notify your supervisor as far in advance as possible if you are 
going to take sick time off. There may be occasions, such as sudden illness, 
when you cannot notify your supervisor in advance. In those situations, provide 
notification of your circumstances as soon as possible. You may also be 
requested to provide a certificate of illness to your supervisor.

You may use sick leave benefits for dental or doctor visits or to care for 
immediate family members who are sick. There may also be state mandated 
use of sick time. Unused sick days may not be converted to a cash payment. 
You may be required to use available sick leave during family and medical 
leave, disability leave, or other leave.

1st year of employment = 5 days

2nd year of employment = 10 days

All years thereafter = 10 days

Sick leave will accrue and be posted semi-monthly. Leave is calculated using 
the annual hire date of each employee.  Sick leave is allowed to accrue from 
year to year but cannot be allowed to exceed 30 days (240 hrs). Unused sick 
leave is canceled upon termination of employment without compensation to the 
employee.
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7.13    Temporary Personnel

Temporary employees are hired for a specific period or specific work project, 
not to exceed 9 months in duration. Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
reserves the right to extend the duration of temporary employment where 
necessary. Temporary employees are not eligible for benefits unless specified 
otherwise in this handbook or in the benefit plan summaries, or specifically 
permitted by law.

7.14    Unemployment Compensation Insurance Policy

Unemployment compensation insurance is paid for by Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency and provides temporary income for employees who 
have lost their job under certain circumstances. Your eligibility for 
unemployment compensation will, in part, be determined by the reasons for 
your separation from the Agency.

7.15    Vision Care Insurance

All regular full-time employees who have completed 90 of employment at 
Concho Valley Community Action Agency are eligible for the Agency vision care
plan. Vision care plan benefits are described in detail in the Summary Plan 
Description (SPD).

7.16    Workers' Compensation Insurance Policy

Workers' compensation is a no-fault system designed to provide benefits to all 
employees for work-related injuries. Workers' compensation insurance 
coverage is paid for by employers and governed by state law. The workers' 
compensation system provides for coverage of medical treatment and 
expenses, occupational disability leave, and rehabilitation services, as well as 
payment for lost wages due to work related injuries. If you are injured on the job
while working at Concho Valley Community Action Agency, no matter how 
slightly, you are to report the incident immediately to your supervisor. 
Consistent with applicable state law, failure to report an injury within a 
reasonable period of time could jeopardize your claim for benefits.

To receive workers' compensation benefits, notify your supervisor immediately 
of your claim. If your injury is the result of an on-the-job accident, you must fill 
out an accident report. You will be required to submit a medical release before 
you can return to work.

7.17    Military Leave (USERRA)

Concho Valley Community Action Agency complies with applicable federal and 
state law regarding military leave and re-employment rights. Unpaid military 
leave of absence will be granted to members of the uniformed services in 
accordance with the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment 
Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA; with amendments) and all applicable state law. 
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You must submit documentation of the need for leave to Human Resources. 
When returning from military leave of absence, you will be reinstated to your 
previous position or a similar position, in accordance with state and federal law. 
You must notify your supervisor of your intent to return to employment based on
requirements of the law. For more information regarding status, compensation, 
benefits, and reinstatement upon return from military leave, contact Human 
Resources.
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8.0    Safety and Loss Prevention

8.1    General Safety Policy

It is the responsibility of all Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
employees to maintain a healthy and safe work environment. Report all safety 
hazards and occupational illnesses or injuries to your supervisor as soon as 
reasonably possible and complete an occupational illness or injury form as 
needed. Failure to follow the Agency health and safety rules may result in 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

8.2    Policy Against Workplace Violence

As the safety and security of our employees, vendors, contractors, and the 
general public is in the best interests of Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency, we are committed to working with our employees to provide a work 
environment free from violence, intimidation, and other disruptive behavior.

Zero Tolerance Policy

The Agency has a zero tolerance policy regarding workplace violence and will 
not tolerate acts or threats of violence, harassment, intimidation, and other 
disruptive behavior, either physical or verbal, that occurs in the workplace or 
other areas. This applies to management, co-workers, employees, and non-
employees such as contractors, customers, and visitors.

Workplace violence can include oral or written statements, gestures, or 
expressions that communicate a direct or indirect threat of physical harm, 
damage to property, or any intentional behavior that may cause a person to feel
threatened.

Prohibited Conduct

Prohibited conduct includes, but is not limited to:

 Physically injuring another person.
 Threatening to injure a person or damage property by any means, 

including verbal, written, direct, indirect, or electronic means.
 Taking any action to place a person in reasonable fear of imminent harm 

or offensive contact.
 Possessing, brandishing, or using a firearm on Agency property or while 

performing Agency business except as permitted by state law.
 Violating a restraining order, order of protection, injunction against 

harassment, or other court order.

Reporting Incidents of Violence

Report to supervisor, in accordance with this policy, any behavior that 
compromises our ability to maintain a safe work environment. All reports will be 
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investigated immediately and kept confidential, except where there is a 
legitimate need to know. You are expected to cooperate in any investigation of 
workplace violence.

Violations

Violating this policy may subject you to criminal charges as well as discipline up 
to and including immediate termination of employment.

Retaliation

Victims and witnesses of workplace violence will not be retaliated against in any
manner. In addition, you will not be subject to discipline for, based on a 
reasonable belief, reporting a threat or for cooperating in an investigation.

If you initiate, participate, are involved in retaliation, or obstruct an investigation 
into conduct prohibited by this policy, you will be subject to discipline up to and 
including termination.

If you believe you have been wrongfully retaliated against, immediately report 
the matter to Human Resources.

8.3    Drug-Free Workplace

Drug-Free Workplace Act

As a federal contractor, Concho Valley Community Action Agency must comply 
with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, which is a part 
of Public Law 100-690, Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988. The federal Drug-Free 
Workplace Act of 1988 (§ 5152) covers grants and contracts for the 
procurement of any service with a value of $25,000 or more.

To comply with the act, federal agency contractors and federal grant recipients 
must provide a drug-free workplace. These federal contractors and grant 
recipients will:

 Publish a statement prohibiting the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensation, possession, or use of illegal drugs in the workplace and 
specify the actions that will be taken against employees for violations.

 Distribute a copy of the policy statement to employees engaged in the 
performance of a federal grant or contract.

 Notify employees that compliance with the policy is a condition of 
employment on such grant or contract and that employees must abide by
the terms of the policy statement. The policy statement includes the 
requirement that employees notify the Agency of any criminal drug 
statute conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than 
five days after such conviction.

 Notify the granting or contracting agency within 10 days after learning of 
a criminal drug statute conviction.

 Impose a sanction as required under this act on employees who are so 
convicted.
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 Establish a program of drug-free awareness, informing employees about 
the organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, the 
penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug-abuse 
violations, the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, and any available
drug counseling, rehabilitation, and assistance programs.

 Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace 
through implementation of these requirements.

Americans with Disabilities Act

In addition to complying with the federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, the 
Agency must comply with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990 (ADA). Individuals who currently use drugs illegally are not 
individuals with disabilities protected under the ADA when an employer takes 
action because of their continued use of drugs. This includes people who use 
prescription drugs illegally as well as those who use illegal drugs. However, 
people who have been rehabilitated and do not currently use drugs illegally, or 
who are in the process of completing a rehabilitation program, may be protected
by the ADA.

Drug-Free Workplace Policy

The Agency, in compliance with the federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 
has adopted the following policy that must be adhered to as a condition of 
employment:

 The unlawful use, possession, manufacture, dispensation, or distribution 
of controlled substances in all work locations is prohibited.

 Any employees convicted of a criminal drug statute violation occurring in 
the workplace must notify their supervisor of the conviction within five 
days after the conviction. As required by the federal Drug-Free 
Workplace Act of 1988, the Agency must inform contracting or granting 
agencies of such convictions within 10 days after receiving notification or 
otherwise receiving notice of a conviction.

 Upon receiving such notification, the Agency, in conjunction with the 
location concerned, will take all steps necessary to assure the proper 
conduct of sponsored projects and programs. If a decision is reached to 
allow the affected individual to continue employment with the Agency, the
individual must participate in and satisfactorily complete an approved 
drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program.
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9.0    Trade Secrets and Inventions

9.1    Confidentiality and Nondisclosure of Trade Secrets

As a condition of employment, Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
employees are required to protect the confidentiality of Agency trade secrets, 
proprietary information, and confidential commercially-sensitive information (i.e. 
financial or sales records/reports, marketing or business strategies/plans, 
product development, customer lists, patents, trademarks, etc.) related to the 
Agency. Access to this information should be limited to a "need to know" basis 
and should not be used for personal benefit, disclosed, or released without prior
authorization from management. If you have information that leads you to 
suspect that employees or competitors are obtaining such information, you are 
required to inform your supervisor or Human Resources.

Violation of this policy may result in discipline or termination, and may subject 
the violator to civil liability.
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10.0    Customer Relations

10.1    Customer, Client, and Visitor Relations

Concho Valley Community Action Agency strives to provide the best products 
and services possible to our customers and clients. Our customers and clients 
support this business and generate your wages. You are expected to treat 
every customer, client, or visitor with the utmost respect and courtesy during 
your working time. You should never argue or act in a disrespectful manner 
towards a visitor or customer during your working time. If you are having 
problems with a customer, client, or visitor, notify your supervisor immediately. If
a customer, client, or visitor voices a suggestion, complaint, or concern 
regarding our products or services, inform your supervisor or a member of 
management. Lastly, make every effort to be prompt in following up on 
customer, client, or visitor orders or questions. Positive customer, client, and 
visitor relations will go a long way to establishing our Agency as a leader in its 
field.

10.2    Products and Services Knowledge

As a representative of Concho Valley Community Action Agency, you are 
expected to be familiar with the products and services we offer. Take every 
opportunity to learn the interrelationship between your department or division 
and the others of the Agency. We consider our employees to be the best 
reflection of our business brand and company success.

41



Texas Policies

11.0    Introductory Language and Policies

11.1    Revisions to Handbook

This handbook is our attempt to keep you informed of the terms and conditions 
of your employment, including Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
policies and procedures. The handbook is not a contract. The Agency reserves 
the right to revise, add, or delete from this handbook as we determine to be in 
our best interest, except the policy concerning at-will employment. When 
changes are made to the policies and guidelines contained herein, we will 
endeavor to communicate them in a timely fashion, typically in a written 
supplement to the handbook or in a posting on company bulletin boards.
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12.0    Hiring and Orientation Policies

12.1    Disability Accommodation

Concho Valley Community Action Agency complies with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA), the Pregnancy Discrimination Act, and all applicable 
state and local fair employment practices laws, and is committed to providing 
equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals with disabilities, 
including disabilities related to pregnancy, childbirth, and related conditions. 
Consistent with this commitment, the Agency will provide reasonable 
accommodation to otherwise qualified individuals where appropriate to allow the
individual to perform the essential functions of the job, unless doing so would 
create an undue hardship on the business.

If you require an accommodation because of your disability, it is your 
responsibility to notify your supervisor. You may be asked to include relevant 
information such as:

 A description of the proposed accommodation.
 The reason you need an accommodation.
 How the accommodation will help you perform the essential functions of 

your job.

After receiving your request, the Agency will engage in an interactive dialogue 
with you to determine the precise limitations of your disability and explore 
potential reasonable accommodations that could overcome those limitations. 
Where appropriate, we may need your permission to obtain additional 
information from your medical provider. All medical information received by the 
Agency in connection with a request for accommodation will be treated as 
confidential.

The Agency encourages you to suggest specific reasonable accommodations 
that you believe would allow you to perform your job. However, the Agency is 
not required to make the specific accommodation requested by you and may 
provide an alternative accommodation, to the extent any reasonable 
accommodation can be made without imposing an undue hardship on the 
Agency.

If leave is provided as a reasonable accommodation, such leave may run 
concurrently with leave under the federal Family and Medical Leave Act and/or 
any other leave where permitted by state and federal law.

The Agency will not discriminate or retaliate against employees for requesting 
an accommodation.

12.2    EEO Statement and Nonharassment Policy

Equal Opportunity Statement
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Concho Valley Community Action Agency is committed to the principles of 
equal employment. We are committed to complying with all federal, state, and 
local laws providing equal employment opportunities, and all other employment 
laws and regulations. It is our intent to maintain a work environment that is free 
of harassment, discrimination, or retaliation because of sex (including 
pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions), gender, race, religion, 
color, national origin, physical or mental disability, genetic information, marital 
status, age (40 and older), sexual orientation, AIDS/HIV status, military service, 
veteran status, or any other status protected by federal, state, or local laws. The
Agency is dedicated to the fulfillment of this policy in regard to all aspects of 
employment, including but not limited to recruiting, hiring, placement, transfer, 
training, promotion, rates of pay, and other compensation, termination, and all 
other terms, conditions, and privileges of employment.

The Agency will conduct a prompt and thorough investigation of all allegations 
of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation, or any violation of the Equal 
Employment Opportunity Policy in a confidential manner. The Agency will take 
appropriate corrective action, if and where warranted. The Agency prohibits 
retaliation against employees who provide information about, complain about, or
assist in the investigation of any complaint of discrimination or violation of the 
Equal Employment Opportunity Policy.

We are all responsible for upholding this policy. You may discuss questions 
regarding equal employment opportunity with your supervisor or any other 
designated member of management.

Policy Against Workplace Harassment

Concho Valley Community Action Agency has a strict policy against all types of 
workplace harassment, including sexual harassment and other forms of 
workplace harassment based upon an individual's sex (including pregnancy, 
childbirth, or related medical conditions), gender, race, religion, color, national 
origin, physical or mental disability, genetic information, marital status, age (40 
and older), sexual orientation, AIDS/HIV status, military service, veteran status, 
or any other status protected by federal, state, or local laws. All forms of 
harassment of, or by, employees, vendors, visitors, customers, and clients are 
strictly prohibited and will not be tolerated.

Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for 
sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when (1) 
submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly as a term or 
condition of an individual's employment; (2) submission to, or rejection of such 
conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting
such individual; or (3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably 
interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, 
hostile, or offensive work environment.

While it is not possible to identify every act that constitutes or may constitute 
sexual harassment, the following are some examples of sexual harassment:
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 Unwelcome requests for sexual favors;
 Lewd or derogatory comments or jokes;
 Comments regarding sexual behavior or the body of another;
 Sexual innuendo and other vocal activity such as catcalls or whistles;
 Obscene letters, notes, emails, invitations, photographs, cartoons, 

articles, or other written or pictorial materials of a sexual nature;
 Repeated requests for dates after being informed that interest is 

unwelcome;
 Retaliating against another for refusing a sexual advance or reporting an 

incident of possible sexual harassment to the Agency or any government
agency;

 Offering or providing favors or employment benefits such as promotions, 
favorable evaluations, favorable assigned duties or shifts, etc., in 
exchange for sexual favors; and

 Any unwanted physical touching or assaults, or blocking or impeding 
movements.

Other Harassment

Other workplace harassment is verbal or physical conduct that insults or shows 
hostility or aversion towards an individual because of the individual's sex 
(including pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions), gender, race, 
religion, color, national origin, physical or mental disability, genetic information, 
marital status, age (40 and older), sexual orientation, AIDS/HIV status, military 
service, veteran status, or any other status protected by federal, state, or local 
laws.

Again, while it is not possible to list all the circumstances that may constitute 
other forms of workplace harassment, the following are some examples of 
conduct that may constitute workplace harassment:

 The use of disparaging or abusive words or phrases, slurs, negative 
stereotyping, or threatening, intimidating, or hostile acts that relate to the 
above protected categories;

 Written or graphic material that insults, stereotypes, or shows aversion or
hostility towards an individual or group because of one of the above 
protected categories and that is placed on walls, bulletin boards, email, 
voicemail, or elsewhere on our premises, or circulated in the workplace; 
and

 A display of symbols, slogans, or items that are associated with hate or 
intolerance towards any select group.

Reporting Discrimination and Harassment

If you feel that you have witnessed or have been subjected to any form of 
discrimination or harassment, immediately notify Dr. Mark Bethune, Executive 
Director, or any member of management.

The Agency prohibits retaliation against employees who, based on a 
reasonable belief, provide information about, complain, or assist in the 
investigation of any complaint of harassment or discrimination.
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We will promptly and thoroughly investigate any claim and take appropriate 
action where we find a claim has merit. To the extent possible, we will retain the
confidentiality of those who report suspected or alleged violations of the 
harassment policy.

Discipline for violation of this policy may include, but is not limited to, reprimand,
suspension, demotion, transfer, and discharge. If the Agency determines that 
harassment or discrimination occurred, corrective action will be taken to 
effectively end the harassment. As necessary, the Agency may monitor any 
incident of harassment or discrimination to assure the inappropriate behavior 
has stopped. In all cases, the Agency will follow up as necessary to ensure that 
no individual is retaliated against for making a complaint or cooperating with an 
investigation.

12.3    Religious Accommodation

Concho Valley Community Action Agency is dedicated to treating its employees
equally and with respect and recognizes the diversity of their religious beliefs. 
All employees may request an accommodation when their religious beliefs 
cause a deviation from the Agency dress code or the individual's schedule, 
basic job duties, or other aspects of employment. The Agency will consider the 
request, but reserves the right to offer its own accommodation to the extent 
permitted by law. Some, but not all, of the factors that will be considered are 
cost, the effect that an accommodation will have on current established policies,
and the burden on operations — including other employees — when 
determining a reasonable accommodation. At no time will the Agency question 
the validity of a person's belief.

Religious accommodation request forms are available from supervisor.
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13.0    Wage and Hour Policies

13.1    Accommodations for Nursing Mothers

Concho Valley Community Action Agency will provide nursing mothers 
reasonable paid break time to express milk for their infant child(ren) for up to 
one year following the child's birth.

If you are nursing, you will be provided with a space, other than a restroom, that
is shielded from view and free from intrusion from co-workers and the public.

Expressed milk can be stored in company refrigerator or personal cooler. 
Sufficiently mark or label your milk to avoid confusion for other employees who 
may share the refrigerator.

Break time should, if possible, be taken concurrently with any other break time 
already provided. If you are nonexempt, clock out for any time taken that does 
not run concurrently with normally scheduled rest periods, and such time will be 
paid in accordance with federal law.

You are encouraged to discuss the length and frequency of these breaks with 
your supervisor.

No provision of this policy applies, or will be enforced, if it conflicts with or is 
superseded by any requirement or prohibition contained in a federal, state, or 
local law, or regulation.

13.2    Meal and Rest Periods

Concho Valley Community Action Agency strives to provide a safe and healthy 
work environment and complies with all federal and state regulations regarding 
meal and rest periods. Check with your supervisor regarding procedures and 
schedules for rest and meal breaks. The Agency requests that employees 
accurately observe and record meal and rest periods. If you know in advance 
that you may not be able to take your scheduled break or meal period, let your 
supervisor know; in addition, notify your supervisor as soon as possible if you 
were unable to or prohibited from taking a meal or rest period.

13.3    Overtime

If you are nonexempt, you may qualify for overtime pay. All overtime must be 
approved in advance, in writing, by your supervisor.

At certain times Concho Valley Community Action Agency may require you to 
work overtime. We will attempt to give as much notice as possible in this 
instance. However, advance notice may not always be possible. Failure to work 
overtime when requested or working unauthorized overtime may result in 
discipline, up to and including discharge.
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Unless otherwise required or exempted by law, overtime pay of one and one-
half times your regular rate of pay is paid for any hours worked in excess of 40 
hours in a workweek. Holidays, vacation days, and sick leave days do not count
as time worked for computing overtime.

13.4    Pay Period

At Concho Valley Community Action Agency, the standard pay period is semi-
monthly for all employees. Pay dates are the 5th and 20th. If a pay period falls 
on a holiday, you will be paid on the preceding work day. If a pay date falls on a 
Saturday or Sunday, paychecks will be issued on Friday.  Special provisions 
may be required from time to time if holidays fall on pay dates. Check with your 
supervisor if this type of date arises. 

Review your paycheck for accuracy. If you find an issue, report it to your 
supervisor immediately.

13.5    Paycheck Deductions

Concho Valley Community Action Agency is required by law to make certain 
deductions from your pay each pay period. This includes income and 
unemployment taxes, Federal Insurance Contributions Act (FICA) contributions 
(Social Security and Medicare), and any other deductions required under law or 
by court order for wage garnishments. The amount of your tax deductions will 
depend on your earnings and the number of exemptions you list on your federal
Form W-4 and applicable state withholding form. You may also authorize 
voluntary deductions from your paycheck, including contributions for insurance 
premiums, retirement plans, spending accounts, or other services. Your 
deductions will be reflected in your wage statement.

The Agency will not make deductions to your pay that are prohibited by federal, 
state, or local law. If you have any questions about deductions from your pay, 
contact your supervisor. You will be reimbursed in full for any isolated, 
inadvertent, or improper deductions, as defined by law. If an error is found, you 
will receive an immediate adjustment, which will be paid no later than your next 
regular payday.

13.6    Recording Time

Federal and state laws require Concho Valley Community Action Agency to 
keep accurate records of hours worked by nonexempt (hourly) employees. 
Clock in no more than five minutes ahead of your start time and clock out no 
later than five minutes after your quitting time. All nonexempt employees are 
required to enter their hours worked accurately, including all lunch periods and 
any rest periods of more than 20 minutes. You are required to notify the Agency
of any pay discrepancies, unrecorded or misrecorded work hours, or any 
involuntary missed meal or break periods.
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Do not complete the time sheet of any other employees or request that they do 
so for you. Be sure to indicate your days off. Any changes to your time card 
must be approved of and initialed by your supervisor. Time cards are to be 
turned in to you supervisor on the 1st and 16th day of each month.

Falsification of time records or recording time for other employees may result in 
discipline up to and including termination of employment.

13.7    Travel Time Pay

Some nonexempt positions within Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
require travel. The Agency pays nonexempt employees for travel time in 
accordance with federal and state law. For purposes of this policy, the regular 
workday is 8:00am - 5:00pm Monday thru Friday.

Home to Work Travel

If you travel from home before the regular workday and return to your home at 
the end of the workday, you are engaged in ordinary home to work travel, which
is not work time.

Home to Work on a Special One Day Assignment in Another City

If you regularly work at a fixed location in one city and you are given a special 
one day assignment in another city, but return home the same day, the time 
spent in traveling to and returning from the other city is work time, except that 
the Agency may deduct/not count that time you would normally spend 
commuting to the regular work site.

Travel That Is All in a Day's Work

Your time spent in travel as part of your principal activity, such as travel from job
site to job site during the workday, is work time and must be counted as hours 
worked.

Travel Away from Home Community

Travel that keeps you away from home overnight is travel away from home. 
Travel away from home is clearly work time when it cuts across your workday. 
The time is not only hours worked on regular working days during normal 
working hours but also during corresponding hours on nonworking days. The 
Agency will not consider as work time that time spent in travel away from home 
outside of your regular working hours as a passenger on an airplane, train, 
boat, bus, or automobile.

Work Performed While Traveling

Any work you perform while traveling must be counted as hours worked.

Calculating and Reporting Travel Time
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You are responsible for accurately tracking, calculating, and reporting your 
travel time. Travel time should be calculated by rounding up to the nearest 
quarter hour.
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14.0    Performance, Discipline, Layoff, and Termination

14.1    Criminal Activity/Arrests

Involvement in criminal activity during employment, whether on or off Concho 
Valley Community Action Agency property, may result in disciplinary action 
including suspension or termination of employment. Disciplinary action depends
upon a review of all factors involved, including whether or not the action was 
work-related, the nature of the act, or circumstances that adversely affect 
attendance or performance. Any disciplinary action is not dependent upon the 
disposition of any case in court.

You are expected to be on the job, ready to work, when scheduled. Inability to 
report to work as scheduled as a result of an arrest may lead to disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination of employment, for violation of an 
attendance policy or job abandonment.

Any disciplinary action taken will be based on information reasonably available. 
This information may come from witnesses, police, or any other source as long 
as management has reason to view the source as credible.

14.2    Disciplinary Process

Violation of Concho Valley Community Action Agency policies or procedures 
may result in disciplinary action including demotion, transfer, leave without pay, 
or termination of employment. The Agency encourages a system of progressive
discipline depending on the type of prohibited conduct. However, the Agency is 
not required to engage in progressive discipline and may discipline or terminate 
employees who violate the rules of conduct, or where the quality or value of 
their work fails to meet expectations at any time. Again, any attempt at 
progressive discipline does not imply that your employment is anything other 
than on an "at-will" basis.

In appropriate circumstances, management will first provide you with a verbal 
warning, then with one or more written warnings, and if the conduct is not 
sufficiently altered, eventual demotion, transfer, forced leave, or termination of 
employment. Your supervisor will make every effort possible to allow you to 
respond to any disciplinary action taken. Understand that while the Agency is 
concerned with consistent enforcement of our policies, we are not obligated to 
follow any disciplinary or grievance procedure and that depending on the 
circumstances, you may be disciplined or terminated without any prior warning 
or procedure.

14.3    Post-Employment Reference Policy

Concho Valley Community Action Agency policy is to confirm dates of 
employment and job title only. With written authorization, the Agency will 
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confirm compensation. Forward any requests for employment verification to 
Human Resources.
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15.0    General Policies

15.1    Payroll Advances and Loans

Concho Valley Community Action Agency does not make payroll advances or 
loans.

15.2    Personnel and Medical Records

Concho Valley Community Action Agency maintains a personnel for all 
employees. Medical records will not be kept. Every effort will be made to keep 
your personnel confidential. Access is on a "need-to-know" basis only. This 
includes, but is not limited to, supervisors and others in management reviewing 
the file for possible promotion, transfer, or layoff.

If you wish to review your personnel, you must give the Agency reasonable 
notice. Inspection must occur in the presence of a Agency representative. All 
requests by an outside party for information contained in your personnel file will 
be directed to the Human Resources department, which is the only department 
authorized to give out such information.

15.3    Voicemail, Email, and Internet Policy

This Voicemail/Email/Internet Policy is intended to provide Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency employees with the guidelines associated with the 
use of the voicemail/email/Internet system (the system). This policy applies to 
all employees and any others accessing and/or using the system through onsite
or remote terminals.

General Provisions

 The system, and all data transmitted or received through the system, is 
the exclusive property of the Agency. You should not have any 
expectation of privacy in any communication over this system. If you are 
permitted to have access to the system, you will be given a voicemail, 
email, and/or Internet address and/or access code and will have use of 
the system consistent with this policy.

 The Agency reserves the right to monitor, intercept, and/or review all 
data transmitted, received, or downloaded over the system. Any 
individual who is given access to the system is hereby given notice that 
the Agency will exercise this right periodically, without prior notice and 
without the prior consent.

 The interests of the Agency in monitoring and intercepting data include, 
but are not limited to: protection of Agency trade secrets, proprietary, and
similar confidential commercially-sensitive information (i.e. financial or 
sales records/reports, marketing or business strategies/plans, product 
development, customer lists, patents, trademarks, etc.); managing the 
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use of the computer system; and/or assisting employees in the 
management of electronic data during periods of absence.

 You should not interpret the use of password protection as creating a 
right or expectation of privacy. To protect everyone involved, no one can 
have a right or expectation of privacy regarding the receipt, transmission,
or storage of data on the Agency voicemail/email/Internet system.

Any employees who violate this policy will be subject to corrective action, up to 
and including termination of employment. If necessary, the Agency will also 
advise law enforcement officials of any illegal conduct.
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16.0    Benefits

16.1    Health Insurance

Concho Valley Community Action Agency provides its regular full-time 
employees who have completed 90 days of employment with health insurance. 
You have an option of dependant coverage at your expense. Medical plan 
benefits for eligible employees are described in detail in the Summary Plan 
Description (SPD) that is available to all eligible employees. These benefits may
be canceled or changed at the discretion of the Agency, unless otherwise 
required by law.

[[FMLA Subpolicy: Health benefits during Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)
leave are maintained by the Agency on the same terms as if you continued to 
work. You must make arrangements to pay your share of the health insurance 
premium on a monthly basis to maintain insurance coverage. Contact [the 
Payroll Department] to determine your contribution amount. The obligation of 
Agency to maintain health benefits stops when:

 You inform the Agency of your intent not to return to work at the end of 
the leave period; or

 You fail to return to work when the FMLA entitlement is exhausted; or
 You fail to timely make your premium payments.

The Agency will be entitled to recover premiums paid to maintain health 
insurance coverage for you if you fail to return to work from leave.

Plan eligibility does not necessarily mean coverage for all medical treatments or
procedures. Under changed circumstances, you may be responsible for 
contributing to the cost of increased premiums. This benefit, as well as other 
benefits, may be canceled or changed at the discretion of the Agency, unless 
otherwise required by law.]]

16.2    Jury Duty Leave

Concho Valley Community Action Agency encourages employees to fulfill their 
civic duties related to jury duty. If you are summoned for jury duty, notify your 
supervisor as soon as possible to make scheduling arrangements.

If you are classified as exempt, you will not incur any deduction in pay for a 
partial week's absence due to jury duty. If you are classified as nonexempt, you 
will not be compensated for time spent on jury duty. You may opt to use 
vacation time in place of unpaid leave.

The Agency reserves the right to require employees to provide proof of jury duty
service to the extent authorized by law.

The Agency will not retaliate against employees who request or take leave in 
accordance with this policy.
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16.3    Voting Leave

If your work schedule prevents you from voting on Election Day, Concho Valley 
Community Action Agency will allow you a reasonable time off to vote. The time
when you can go to vote will be at the discretion of your supervisor, consistent 
with applicable legal requirements.

16.4    Witness Leave

Concho Valley Community Action Agency realizes that, on occasion, employees
may be subpoenaed to appear in a civil, criminal, legislative, or administrative 
proceeding. In such cases, you will be provided unpaid leave to attend. Notify 
your supervisor as soon as possible to make scheduling arrangements. You 
may opt to use vacation in place of unpaid leave.

The Agency reserves the right to require employees to provide proof of the 
need for leave to the extent authorized by law.

The Agency will not retaliate against employees who request or take leave in 
accordance with this policy.
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17.0    Safety and Loss Prevention

17.1    Drug and Alcohol Policy

Concho Valley Community Action Agency considers drug and alcohol abuse a 
serious matter that will not be tolerated. The Agency absolutely prohibits 
employees from using, selling, possessing, or being under the influence of 
illegal drugs, alcohol, or a controlled substance or prescription drug not 
medically authorized while at their job, on Agency property, or while on work 
time.

Therefore, it is Agency policy that:

1. You may not report to work under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs, 
or any controlled substance or prescription drug not medically 
authorized.

2. You may not possess or use alcohol, illegal drugs, or any controlled 
substance or prescription drug not medically authorized while on 
company property or on company business.

We also caution against use of prescribed or over-the-counter medication, 
which can affect your ability to perform your job safely, or the use of prescribed 
or over-the-counter medication in a manner violating the recommended dosage 
or instructions from the doctor. You must have a valid prescription for any 
prescription medication used while working for the Agency. Inform your 
supervisor prior to working under the influence of a prescribed or over-the-
counter medication that may affect your ability to perform your job safely. If the 
Agency determines that the prescribed or over-the-counter medication does not 
pose a safety risk, you will be allowed to work. Failure to comply with these 
guidelines concerning prescription or over-the-counter medication may result in 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

A violation of this policy will result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment.

17.2    Nonsmoking Policy

Concho Valley Community Action Agency is concerned about the effect that 
smoking and secondhand smoke inhalation can have on its employees and 
clients. Smoking in the office, client areas, and restrooms is prohibited.
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Closing Statement

Thank you for reading our handbook. We hope it has provided you with an 
understanding of our mission, history, and structure as well as our current 
policies and guidelines. We look forward to working with you to create a 
successful Agency and a safe, productive, and pleasant workplace.

Dr. Mark Bethune, Executive Director

Concho Valley Community Action Agency
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Acknowledgement of Receipt and Review

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the Concho 
Valley Community Action Agency Employee Handbook (handbook) and that I 
have read it, understand it, and agree to comply with it. I understand that the 
Agency has the maximum discretion permitted by law to interpret, administer, 
change, modify, or delete the rules, regulations, procedures, and benefits 
contained in the handbook at any time with or without notice. No statement or 
representation by a supervisor, manager, or any other employee, whether oral 
or written, can supplement or modify this handbook. Changes can only be made
if approved in writing by the Executive Director of the Agency. I also understand
that any delay or failure by the Agency to enforce any rule, regulation, or 
procedure contained in the handbook does not constitute a waiver on behalf of 
the Agency or effect the right of the Agency to enforce such rule, regulation, or 
procedure in the future.

I understand that neither this handbook nor any other communication by a 
management representative or other, whether oral or written, is intended in any 
way to create a contract of employment. I further understand that, unless I have 
a written employment agreement signed by an authorized Agency 
representative, I am employed "at-will" (to the extent permitted by law) and this 
handbook does not modify my "at-will" employment status.

If I am covered by a written employment agreement (signed by an authorized 
Agency representative) or a collective-bargaining agreement that conflicts with 
the terms of this handbook, I understand that the terms of the employment 
agreement or collective-bargaining agreement will control.

This handbook is not intended to preclude or dissuade employees from 
engaging in legally protected activities under the National Labor Relations Act 
(NLRA).

This handbook supersedes any previous handbook or policy statements, 
whether written or oral, issued by Concho Valley Community Action Agency.

If I have any questions about the content or interpretation of this handbook, I will
contact Lyla Martinez.
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_______________________

Date

________________________________________________

Signature

________________________________________________

Print Name
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Paul A. Braden, Member 

Asusena Reséndiz, Member 
Sharon Thomason, Member 

Leo Vasquez, Member 
 

 November 2, 2018 

 
         (512) 475-4608 

         earnest.hunt@tdhca.state.tx.us     
 

Dr. Mark Bethune 

Executive Director 

Concho Valley Community Action Agency 

San Angelo, Texas 76903 

Email: mbethune@cvcaa.org 

RE: Monitoring Report of On-Site Review Conducted October 15
th
 through October 18, 2018 

CEAP Contract No. 58170002586, 58180002783 CSBG Contract No. 61170002629, 61180002854 

DOE Contract No. 56170002725, 56180002955 LIHEAP Contract No. 81170002659, 81180002885 

Dear Dr. Bethune: 

The Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (the Department) conducted a monitoring review 

of the above mentioned contracts. The goal of the review was to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance 

regarding compliance with federal and state requirements and program objectives. 

To achieve this goal, a sample of expenditures along with fifteen (15) CEAP and CSBG file as well as two (2) DOE 

and seven (7) LIHEAP WAP client files were selected and tested. The attached report details the findings, concerns, 

and observations identified during the review and required corrective action. Concho Valley Community Action 

Agency (CVCAA) has already provided all required follow-up documentation, so this review is now considered 

closed. 

The Department wishes to express our appreciation for the cooperation of your staff in facilitating this 

review. If you have any questions or concerns regarding this review, please feel free to contact me or Robert Moore 

at (512) 475-3898 or via email at robert.moore@tdhca.state.tx.us. 
 

 

       Sincerely, 

 

 

 

       Earnest L. Hunt 

Director of Subrecipient Monitoring 
 

rwm/ll 

 

 

 

 

 

 

cc: Michael DeYoung, Director of Community Affairs 

 Laura Saintey, Project Manager/Training 

 Jason Gagne, Training Specialist 

 Karen Keith, Program Specialist 

mailto:earnest.hunt@tdhca.state.tx.us
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General Concerns: 

During the case file review of CEAP Contract No. # 58170002586, #58180002783, CSBG Contract No. 

#61170002629, #61180002854, LIHEAP Contract No. #81170002659, #81180002885 and DOE Contract No. 

#56170002725, #56180002955, Department staff noted the following item of concern which do not require 

corrective action submitted to the Department. Concerns may be subject to subsequent review. Repeat concerns may 

be elevated to deficiencies. Procedures must be developed to ensure these concerns are corrected in the future: 

Concern #1 Ensure Costs are Properly Allocated: Concho Valley Community Action Agency (CVCAA) did not 

properly allocate shared direct program costs. CVCAA has a current program Cost Allocation Plan. However, 

several costs were not allocated to all funding to ensure all benefited activities incurred expenses on a reasonable 

and consistent basis. Based upon the sample of tested expenditures, the following issues were noted: 

CEAP Contract No. 58180002783 – Contract dates: 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2018 

 Computer Bytes – $85.00.  100% charged to CEAP.   

 Allen Young Office Machines – $174.50   

o 1-invoice for $72.50 – 100% charge to CEAP. 

o 2-invoice for $75.00 100% charge to CEAP.  

CSBG Contract No. 61170002629 – Contract dates:  1/1/2017 - 3/31/2018 

 Postmaster – $182.00.  100% charged to CSBG. 

 Allen Young Office Machines – $114.13. 50% charged to CEAP/CSBG. 

 William Ferreira – $120.00.  100% charged to CSBG. 

CSBG Contract No. 61180002854 – Contract dates:  1/1/2018-12/31/2018 

 William Ferreira – for $225.00.  100% charged to CSBG. 

LIHEAP Contract No. 81180002885 – Contract dates: 1/1/2018 – 12/31/2018 

 Allen Young Office Machines – for $60.00.  100% charge to LIHEAP.  

Required Action: Prior to the completion of the onsite monitoring review, Concho Valley Community Action 

Agency (CVCAA) provided a copy of the general ledger supporting the allocation of the questioned costs noted 

above. The Department will review CVCAA’s October MER’s to ensure the adjustments noted in the general 

ledgers provided are reflective in the expenditure reporting to the Department. In the future, Concho Valley 

Community Action (CVCAA) must ensure all costs are properly allocated as required by federal and state cost 

allocation requirements. 

Concern #2 Ensure Costs are Reasonable: Concho Valley Community Action Agency (CVCAA) reported 

weatherization staff salaries under CSBG funding. CVCAA weatherization staff attended an organization retreat and 

board meeting to which staff was representing weatherization.  Hours worked were reported and accounted for under 

CSBG funding.  Specifically: 

CSBG Contract No. 61180002854  

 W. F. – for $402.00.  WAP staff attendance of agency retreat – time charged to CSBG and not allocated to 

DOE/LIHEAP.   

 W. F. – for $36.48.  WAP staff attended CVCAA board meeting – time charged to CSBG and not allocated 

to DOE/LIHEAP. 

Required Action: Prior to the completion of the onsite monitoring review, Concho Valley Community Action 

Agency (CVCAA) provided a copy of the general ledger supporting the re-allocation of the questioned costs noted 

above. The Department will review CVCAA’s October MER’s to ensure the adjustments noted in the general 

ledgers provided are reflective in the expenditure reporting to the Department. In the future, Concho Valley 

Community Action (CVCAA), reports are costs are reasonable as defined by federal and state requirements. 
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Concern #3 Ensure Updated Cost Allocation Plan: Concho Valley Community Action Agency’s (CVCAA) cost 

allocation plan does not include additional allocation processes adopted by CVCAA. Specifically, CVCAA’s cost 

allocation plan states rent will be allocated based upon square footage. However, in practice CVCAA allocates rent 

by square footage and then by a percentage of estimated time staff spends on CEAP/CSBG programs. Current 

allocation is 75%/25%. CVCAA will adjust to actual expenditures as the end of the year. The following issues were 

noted: 

CSBG Contract No. 61170002629  

 Historic City Center Project, Inc (rent) – for $463.80 –  

o Additional allocation:  25/75 (CSBG/CEAP) percentages(see above)  

 Suddenlink (communication) – for $90.04 

o Additional allocation:  based upon estimated time study of 25/75 (CSBG/CEAP).   

LIHEAP Contract No. 81180002885  

 Historic City Center Project, In (rent)  

o Additional allocation:  DOE/LIHEAP for 1 shared space that is further allocated based upon 

timesheets. 

 Suddenlink (communication) – for $90.04–  

o Additional allocation:  DOE/LIHEAP for 2 phone line is allocated based upon timesheets. 

 Clemens & Associates (advertisement) – for $1206.67 

o Additional allocation: 2/3 charged to LIHEAP & 1/3 charged to DOE.  Amount will be adjusted at 

year end to actual timesheets.  

DOE Contract No. 56170002725  

 ISU/BC Environmental (insurance) – for $1341.00  

o Additional allocation:  55% charged to DOE.  Amount will be adjusted at year end to actual 2018 

timesheets.  

DOE Contract No. 56180002955  

 Historic City Center Project, In (rent) – for $724.65 

o Additional allocation:  DOE/LIHEAP for 1 shared space that is further allocated based upon 2017 

timesheets. 

 Suddenlink (communication) – for $90.04 

o Additional allocation:  DOE/LIHEAP for 2 phone line is allocated based upon timesheets. 

 Clemens & Associates (advertisement) – for $1206.67 

o Additional allocation: 2/3 charged to LIHEAP & 1/3 charged to DOE.  Amount will be adjusted at 

year end to actual timesheets.  

Required Action: CVCAA must update the cost allocation plan to include all additional allocation processes as 

defined by federal and state requirements. 

Concern #4 Ensure Correct TOP Income Tracking – CSBG: Review of six (6) CSBG TOP client files revealed 

CVCAA was incorrectly determining the month a client initially exceeded 125% of the Poverty Income Guidelines. 

Specifically, file 102316 – KS income documentation showed the client initially exceeded 125% of the Poverty in 

April 2018 and reached TOP goal of 90 days in June 2018. CVCAA documentation indicated the client initially 

exceeded 125% of the Poverty in May 2018 and reached TOP goal of 90 days in July 2018. Due to the income 

tracking error CVCAA provided $100.00 Transportation services in July which is after the client achieved TOP goal 

of 90 days. 

Required Action: Prior to the completion of the onsite monitoring review, CVCAA provided a copy of the general 

ledger supporting the adjustment of the questioned cost noted above. The Department will review CVCAA’s 

October MER’s to ensure the adjustments noted in the general ledgers provided are reflective in the expenditure 

reporting to the Department. In the future, CVCAA must update their TOP income verification process to ensure the 
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correct month the client exceeds the 125% of Poverty Income Guidelines and continues for 90 days as defined in 10 

TAC, Chapter 6, Subchapter B, RULE §6.207. No further action is required. 

Concern #5 Ensure DOE/LIHEAP Complete Final Inspections are Preformed (repeat concern). 

An on-site inspection of nine (9) weatherized units revealed five (5) units requiring a return to correct 

measures with two (2) additional units requiring updated testing documentation. Table 1 of this report details the 

measure that were not addressed properly or installed correctly. The Department of Energy (“DOE”) Weatherization 

Assistance Program and the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (“LIHEAP”) contracts require that 

weatherization materials be installed in accordance to the Standard Work Specification (SWS) and the Material 

Installation Standards Manual.  

The DOE Contract Exhibit C requires the following: 

All weatherization measures installed shall meet or exceed the standards prescribed by DOE in Weatherization 

Program Notice (WPN) 15-4 regarding Standard Work Specifications (SWS), as detailed in the Department’s SWS 

and Materials Installation Standards Manual. SWS and Materials Installation Standards Manual is required on 

every unit. 

AND 

The DOE & LIHEAP Contract Section 15 requires the following: 

Subrecipient shall inspect all subcontractors’ work and shall be responsible for ensuring that it is completed in a 

good and workmanlike manner. 

AND 

The DOE & LIHEAP Contract Section 19 requires the following:  

Installation of weatherization materials shall be in accordance with the Material Installation Standards Manual for 

LIHEAP and the Standard Work Specification (SWS) for DOE. 

AND 

WPN 17-7 requires the following: 

Implementation of ASHRAE 62.2-2016 is required. Client refusal of mechanical ventilation, when evaluated and 

called for pursuant to the Standard, must result in deferral If the ASHRAE normative Appendix A is employed and 

an existing fan is being replaced or upgraded to meet whole-house ventilation requirements, take actions to prevent 

zonal pressure differences greater than 3 pascals across the closed door, if one exists. Measure fan flow of existing 

fans and of installed equipment to verify performance.  

Table 1 

Unit 
Funding 

Source 
Issue(s) 

Question 

Cost 

Disallowed 

Cost 

002TG018 LIHEAP 

Questioned Cost: Provide required Excel refrigerator 

replacement calculator to justify replacement.  $775.00  N/A 

Questioned Cost: House not in ASHRAE compliance, fan 

readings on blower door data sheet does not match final ASHRAE 

calculator, provide updated final ASHRAE calculator and blower 

door data sheet to verify ASHRAE compliance.  

$2,745.00  N/A 

RETURN: Install required ASHRAE fan switch accessible to 

client in single family home to temporarily turn fan off 
If these 

items not 

corrected 

N/A 

RETURN: Exhaust existing hall bath fan to the outside. N/A 

003TG018 LIHEAP RETURN: Install required ASHRAE fan switch accessible to $3,413.36  N/A 
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client in single family home to temporarily turn fan off 

RETURN: Seal roof leak at ASHRAE fan vent roof penetration If these 

items not 

corrected 

N/A 

Questioned Cost: Provide updated final ASHRAE calculator and 

blower door data sheet to verify ASHRAE compliance.  
N/A 

RETURN: Replace incorrect t-stat installed for new HP with full 

fuction set back t-stat as required by program $150.00  N/A 

RETURN: Install invoiced wall patch on exterior hole that was 

invoiced on BWR  $40.00  N/A 

009TG018 LIHEAP 

RETURN: Install required ASHRAE fan switch accessible to 

client in single family home to temporarily turn fan off $5,930.00  
N/A 

Questioned Cost: Provide updated final ASHRAE calculator and 

blower door data sheet to verify ASHRAE compliance.  
If these 

items not 

corrected 

N/A 

Questioned Cost: Provide required Excel refrigerator 

replacement calculator to justify replacement or not to replace or 

client signed certification of omission and that will satisfy Priority 

List skipped measure justification requirements. 

N/A 

012TG018 LIHEAP 

RETURN: Install front door sweep as indicated on BWR $35.00  N/A 

Questioned Cost: Provide updated final ASHRAE calculator and 

blower door data sheet to verify ASHRAE compliance. 

$4,228.00  

N/A If these 

items not 

corrected 

017TG018 LIHEAP 

Return: Seal return air cavity as indicated on BWR $85.00  N/A 

Questioned Cost: Provide updated final ASHRAE calculator and  

blower door data sheet to verify ASHRAE compliance.  

$6,489.00  

N/A If these 

items not 

corrected 

D01TG018 DOE 
Questioned Cost: Provide updated final ASHRAE calculator and  

blower door data sheet to verify ASHRAE compliance.  

$3,837.50  

N/A If these 

items not 

corrected 

D02TG018 DOE 
Questioned Cost: Provide updated final ASHRAE calculator and  

blower door data sheet to verify ASHRAE compliance.  

$4,176.49  

N/A If these 

items not 

corrected 

Required Action: CVCAA Returns, Questioned and Disallowed Costs 

1. Returns for repair of measures invoiced and reported on a previous MER will require the contractor to return 

to the weatherized unit and address all issues identified in the table above. CVCAA must provide clear 

photos showing all aspects of the repair (ASHRAE fan, Switch w/timer, insulated exhaust duct in attic and 

roof cap), test results, ASHRAE calculator documentation and/or revised BWR as part of their response and 

ensure that all identified issues have been properly addressed. 

2. Returns for measures listed in the table above that were not installed, invoiced and reported on an a previous 

MER can be charged to the appropriate contract if corrected prior to close of the contract. CVCAA must 
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provide all needed photos, test results, updated ASHRAE calculator documentation and revised BWR as 

part of their response and ensure that all identified issues have been properly addressed. Cost of these 

measures should be included in the next reported MER. 

3. Repairs of existing installed measures invoiced and reported on a previous MER cannot be charged to a 

Federal program. 

4. Questioned Costs will require CVCAA to take the appropriate action to correct and/or justify the questioned 

expenditure. CVCAA must address all questioned costs and follow applicable steps listed below to ensure 

expenditure compliance or provide reimbursement: 

a. Any and all Health and Safety items must be installed to program standards will all required testing 

completed, documented and provided to TDHCA. Any Health and Safety item not corrected 

could lead to the entire house cost being questioned. 
5. Complete an updated BRW with items not installed removed and upload to the Department 

6. Notify Department Monitor by email when all items have been completed. 

Prior to the completion of this report, CVCAA provided documentation showing that all measures identified above 

had been adequately corrected. CVCAA must ensure that all charged weatherization measures were both installed, 

installed properly and within 2015 IRC, 2015 IECC requirements, Standard Work Specification (SWS) and 

ASHRAE 62.2 - 2016. No further action is required. 

General Observations: 

During the case file review of LIHEAP Contract No. #81180002885 and DOE Contract No. # 

56180002955, Department staff noted the following observations which do not require corrective action submitted 

to the Department: 

 ASHRAE/CAZ Testing: During onsite inspections CVCAA staff demonstrated a significant increase in 

ability and knowledge to perform QCI, Combustion Appliance Zone (CAZ) and ASHRAE testing processes. 

CVCAA needs continued improvement to include clear test result documentation. Specifically, 

documentation that includes clear process instructions as a referral to ensure all required testing and test 

procedures are properly completed enabling all test results are unmistakably captured. In addition, CVCAA 

must update their ASHRAE documentation process to ensure each unit is modeled correctly on the final 

ASHRAE 62.2-2016 calculator to verify compliance. 

 Whole House Approach to Maximum Energy Savings: Client file reviews and onsite inspections revealed 

CVCAA staff improved their methodology in addressing home weatherization needs and measures. 

CVCAA needs to continue to update collection of required assessment information listed in 10 TAC, 

Chapter 6, Subchapter D, RULE §6.416 to allow complete whole house assessments. Complete whole house 

assessment information will allow CVCAA to ensure presents of a continuous air barrier and thermal 

envelope. The thermal envelope of existing homes begins with air sealing, a properly insulated attic and all 

wall cavities insulated to meet dense packed specifications. CVCAA needs to broaden their verification 

approach which could include but not limited to visual or inferred camera along with utilization the 

Department’s Wall Insulation Calculator to verify the necessary amount of insulation was installed. In 

addition complete assessments allows for the measure justification on the Priority List in the order listed. 

The measures justified by the Priority List must be allowed by the program, and pertain to the category (air 

infiltration, repairs or Health and Safety) the measure is charge. 

 Weatherization Client File Documentation: Client file reviews exposed the need for CVCAA staff to 

verify and ensure all required client file documentation like Mold-like Substance Notification is included in 

the file. Department of Energy (“DOE”) Weatherization Assistance Program and the Low-Income Home 

Energy Assistance Program (“LIHEAP”) contracts under Section 9 list the required individual documents to 

be maintained in every client file. 
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Monitoring Scope: 

The scope of the monitoring review covered contract activity from PY17 to PY18 to determine if CEAP, 

CSBG, DOE and LIHEAP WAP funds were used to assist eligible households and whether those funds were 

expended in accordance with applicable federal and state regulations and contractual requirements. Department staff 

conducted the following steps: 

 An in-depth review of the following: 

o PY18 CEAP fifteen (15) case files tested 

o PY18 CSBG eight (8) case files tested 

o PY18 DOE WAP two (2) case files tested, two (2) inspected 

o PY18 LIHEAP WAP eight (8) case files tested, seven (7) inspected 

 Financial/Policy review  

o Personnel Policies & Procedures Testing  

o Property Management  

o Payroll & Travel  

o Disbursement Testing  

o Reconciliations  

 Procurement Review  

o Procurement and Contract testing  
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Concho Valley Community Action Agency 
Executive Director’s Report 

Thursday, November 8, 2018 
 

FOUR QUESTIONS OF ENGAGEMENT 

1. Does it align with our mission? 

2. Is it a need of the community? 

3. Do we have the capacity? 

4. Is it cost effective? 

CEAP 

The initial 2018 CEAP contract is $1,166,780. UPDATE (July): Contract was increased to 

$1,727,160. 

CVCAA rolled approximately $3,500 direct service dollars into 2018. Although we lost an 

outreach worker at the end of 2017, we hired three. In order to increase services to the outer 

counties as well as to elderly or disabled persons who may not be able to visit our facility, we 

will begin taking applications via mail. We hope to have the system in place by March.  UPDATE 

(February): The flyer announcing mail-in applications is ready. Please help us get the word out. 

Due to new reporting requirements originating at the federal level and amplified by the state, it 

takes our case workers about 2 hours to process each client. Even if the client is only in front of 

our case worker 30 minutes, another 1 ½ must be allocated. This is the reason that we can’t just 

“slip someone in.” Doing so adds 2 hours that must be accounted for somewhere during the 

week. We book appointments typically 2 weeks out, meaning that if someone calls on the first, 

we’re booking for the week of the 14th. We begin booking Monday morning and cease taking 

appointments after the entire week is book. This usually takes less than an hour. After that 

time, we’ll ask clients to try back next Monday. As you can imagine, this results in much 

frustration to the clients, but we can’t book additional clients at this time and have discovered 

if we book past 2 weeks, no-shows increase drastically. As for walk-ins, we take a limited 

number of walk-ins Monday – Wednesday. (Thursday and Friday is reserved for catching up on 

files.) The number of walk-ins seen during any given days depends on the number of case 

workers available. For example, one of our case workers was admitted to the hospital last 

week. That means that the other workers must assume the appointments already made on her 

behalf while maintaining their workload. Obviously, we saw less walk-ins that week. Walk-ins 

must have a disconnect notice and are first come, first serve. We do not tell walk-ins when they 

should arrive, only that they will be seen according to arrival and limited numbers may sign in. 

They are seen IF an appointment doesn’t show up. There are no guarantees, but we help walk-

ins that we sign in over 90% of the time. They may have to wait a bit, though. 
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We would like to hire two additional CEAP workers. One will take appointments and the other 

will help with mail-in applications and walk-ins. Once in place, this should reduce the number of 

persons being sent away without service.  UPDATE (JULY): Two CEAP workers were hired. 

However, we are considering an additional hire. This would allow the Community Services 

Director greater opportunity to supervise and maintain quality assurances. 

Utility Assistance - October 2018 

      

County Households Individuals 
Monthly 

Expenditures 
Monthly 

Average/HH 
YTD 

Expenditures 

      

Coke                15                25  $2,279.87 $151.99  $22,146.03 

Concho                22                35  $2,609.26 $118.60  $26,640.18 

Crockett                20                43  $2,806.98 $140.35  $13,675.38 

Irion                  8                13  $615.64 $76.96  $7,932.16 

Kimble                10                14  $1,513.30 $151.33  $13,944.28 

Menard                27                40  $2,786.31 $103.20  $24,145.71 

Reagan                  2                  5  $346.18 $173.09  $3,664.64 

Schleicher                19                41  $1,844.30 $97.07  $18,040.24 

Sterling                  2                  5  $282.10 $141.05  $2,336.54 

Sutton                22                29  $2,519.88 $114.54  $17,148.59 
Tom 
Green              719           1,707  $119,790.31 $166.61  $772,884.10 

      

Total              866           1,957  $137,394.13 $158.65  $922,557.85 
 

WEATHERIZATION 

The initial 2018 LIHEAP WAP contract is $295,207. Plus some 2017 LIHEAP funds rolled over and 

2017 DOE WAP contract is still in effect. We have not received the 2018 TACAA AEP contract. 

UPDATE (July): LIHEAP was increased to $422,043. TACAA came in at $87,375. 

Weatherization eligibility is capped at 200% of the Federal Poverty Rate.  See attached scale. 

2017 monitoring report to be presented at January 1018 Board of Directors’ Meeting. 

2018 WAP units 

Month Units Counties 

January 1 Tom Green 

February 5 Tom Green 

March 5 Tom Green, Crockett ,Irion 

April 2 Tom Green 
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May 5 Tom Green, Runnels, Sutton 

June 5 Concho, Tom Green, Menard 

July 6 Tom Green 

August  2 Tom Green 

September  7 Tom Green, Crockett 

October 3  Tom Green 

November     

December     

 

LIHEAP Update (August): Due to changes in the redistribution formula, if we choose to move 

money from LIHEAP WAP to CEAP (also LIHEAP) we’ll have to relinquish a portion of the funds 

to Central Texas Opportunities. The change is occurring because WAP and CEAP counties do not 

perfectly overlap. 

We were awarded a $71,718.23 grant from USDA for minor home repairs. The USDA grant will 

be leveraged with WAP funds. 

CSBG 

The initial 2018 CSBG contract is $238,171 and we have about $30,000 from 2017 that must be 

spent before 3/31/2018. 

In 2017, 15 individuals transitioned out of poverty. Our goal was 9. There are currently 22 

persons on Case Management. One person is being tracked to transition. UPDATE (February): 

There are currently 20 persons on Case Management, 3 persons being tracked, and 1 person 

transitioned in January. UPDATE (April): We dropped 2 from Case Management due to lack of 

participation leaving 18 persons. UPDATE (May/June): For the months of May and June, we 

have had 1 family of 2 people transition out. We currently are tracking one family of 3, they 

should transition out in August. We currently have 16 people still on the program. UPDATE 

(September): Three more persons transitioned out of poverty bringing the 2018 total to 6. Six 

more are expected to transition by December 31. One family of three was dropped from the 

program due to failing to meet set goals. The family had been on the program 5 years. It is 

expected that Case Management clients transition within 2 years. We currently have spots 

available for 8 households. UPDATE (November): Six persons transitioned out of poverty in 

October bringing the yearly total to 12. Our goal for 2018 was 9. Eight additional clients were 

enrolled in Case Management during September and October. Executive Director is looking for 

funds to supplement the program. 

The following is an excerpt from an email from TDHCA: 

Dear Dr. Bethune: 

The Community Affairs Division staff has reviewed the CSBG eligible entity performance 

related to the number of persons Transitioned Out of Poverty (TOP) in 2017.   Concho 
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Valley Community Action Agency (CVCAA) had an assigned target of 9 persons to TOP 

and reported 15 (167%) persons as TOP in 2017.  TAC rule §6.207 describes the 

requirements related to providing case management and a minimum TOP goal to each 

eligible entity.   We congratulate you on meeting and exceeding your assigned TOP goal. 

One of the primary purposes of the CSBG grant is to assist persons to achieve self-

sufficiency. The State has a legislatively assigned goal of transitioning 1,200 persons 

statewide and we proportionately assign a target to each eligible entity so that the 

Department is able to meet the State goal.   

CSBG Case Management eligibility is capped at 125% of the Federal Poverty Guideline.  See 

attached scale. 

VITA 

We will begin processing and filing federal tax returns on February 5. This is a free, IRS 

sponsored and monitored service. This is our only program that is not income based. Clients 

may call after 1/22 to set up appointments. We’ll be in the Adult Literacy Council building this 

year. UPDATE (February): In 1 ½ weeks, we’ve prepared and filed 266 returns. We’re already 

booked until March 5.  UPDATE (April): As of April 13, 1545 returns had been accepted by the 

IRS. UPDATE (July): We have applied for two grants: HEB $5000; BBVA Compass $5000 

FUND RAISING 

The Crazy Desert Trail Race will be Saturday, March 10th at the San Angelo State Park.  TXU is 

sponsoring the event on our behalf.  UPDATE (April): The race was up a bit this year with 390 

participants. The goal for 2019 is 500. 

San Angelo Gives will be Tuesday, May 1.  Please consider contributing to CVCAA during this 24 

hour event.  All gifts are amplified through the San Angelo Area Foundation. UPDATE (May): We 

received $400 in gifts. 

On Monday, January 15, 10% of food sales from Texas Roadhouse will be donated to CVCAA. 

Coupon must be presented. UPDATE (February): We received $50 from this event. 

UNITED WAY 

An application was submitted to United Way for funding to the tune of $5,000 representing 

unreimbursed costs associated with the weatherization program. UPDATE (April): Our request 

was not funded. 

TENANT BASED RENTAL ASSISTANCE 

We are currently compiling a waiting list for rental assistance.  The assistance can last up to 2 

years and includes the entire CVCAA service delivery area accept the City of San Angelo. Our 

contract will support about 4 households. However, we also have access to the Reservation 
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System which would allow service to additional households. TBRA clients must reside outside of 

San Angelo city limits. UPDATE (July): Due to staff turnover, we are placing this program on 

hold. 

ORGANIZATIONAL STANDARDS 

CVCAA submitted required documents for the Organizational Standards as mandated by the 

Office of Community Services (OCS). UPDATE (February): We received feedback on our 

Organizational Standards submission. There are a few areas that require our attention, most 

will be cleared up at the submission of the next Community Needs Assessment and Strategic 

Plan (see below). UPDATE (October): All documents were submitted to TDHCA. We were first 

agency to submit and receive 100% approval. 

COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT  

Every 3 years, entities administering Community Services Block Grants must complete a 

comprehensive Community Needs Assessment (CNA). The next is due June 1, 2018. The CNA 

requires Board involvement, input from low-income persons covering the entire CVCAA Service 

Delivery Area, staff participation, and contributions from keys members in the community 

(community leaders, non-profit organizations, schools, local governments, etc.). The CNA will 

be presented to CVCAA’s Board of Directors during the May meeting. UPDATE (July): The CNA 

was submitted prior to the deadline and is now being reviewed by TDHCA. 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

Every 5 years, entities administering Community Services Block Grants must complete a 

Strategic Plan. Although our next Strategic Plan is not due until 2020, we’ve decided to link it to 

the completion of the CNA since the CNA is the basis of the Strategic Plan. We will begin 

working on the Strategic Plan in June. Much like the CNA, the Strategic Plan requires input from 

varied sources. UPDATE (April): We will have a Strategic Planning retreat Friday June 1 and 

Saturday June 2. The retreat will be held at NNNN ranch. CVCAA staff will stay over Friday night. 

Board members are invited to join us on Saturday. Meals and mileage reimbursement will be 

provided. UPDATE (July): The Executive Director hope to submit a new Strategic Plan to the 

BOD in September.  UPDATE (August): TDHCA recently announced that Strategic Planning 

guidance would be forthcoming. We will delay further work until guidance is received. 

WAGE STUDY 

The Texas Association of Community Action Agencies performs a wage study for its members 

every three years. The 2018 wage study was published in March. After evaluating wages across 

the state, I made the appropriate adjustment to our salaries within the average wage bands. 

Strategic Priorities 
 

 Establish low cost, branded office space 
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 Fully expend all grants 

 Implement effective marketing strategy 

 Secure adequate, qualified weatherization applications 

 Maintain equitable distribution of services 

 Implement new management information system for weatherization assistance 
program 

 Foster a climate of innovation 
 

2018 Income Guideline effective 2/1/18 

       

       

Family Size 50% 75% 100% 125% 150% 200% 

1 6,070  9,105  12,140  15,175  18,210  24,280  

2 8,230  12,345  16,460  20,575  24,690  32,920  

3 10,390  15,585  20,780  25,975  31,170  41,560  

4 12,550  18,825  25,100  31,375  37,650  50,200  

5 14,710  22,065  29,420  36,775  44,130  58,840  

6 16,870  25,305  33,740  42,175  50,610  67,480  

7 19,030  28,545  38,060  47,575  57,090  76,120  

8 21,190  31,785  42,380  52,975  63,570  84,760  

       

Each Additional 
Family Member 

2,160  3,240  4,320  5,400  6,480  8,640  

 

Utility Assistance max = 150% 

Weatherization max = 200% 

Case Management max = 125% 
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